




Table of Contents
Financial Highlights

Message from the Chairman and CEO and 
President and COO

JG Summit Businesses

HOLDING COMPANY 
JG Summit Holdings Inc

FOOD
Universal Robina Corporation

PROPERTY
Robinsons Land Corporation 

AIRLINE 
Cebu Air, Inc.

PETROCHEMICALS 
JG Summit Petrochemical Corporation

BANKING SERVICES 
Robinsons Bank

CORE INVESTMENTS
Philippine Long Distance Telephone (PLDT) 
United Industrial Corporation Limited (UIC)

Corporate Social Responsibility

Board of Directors

Financial Statements

Corporate Directory

2

4

11

14

18

22

25

28

31

32

34

40

216



 JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
 december 31 (in million pesos except per share and statistical data)

for the year
Revenues
Net Income (equity holders of the parent)

From Continuing Operations
From Disontinued Operations

as of the year
Total Assets
Total Liabilities
Total Equity

per share
Basic Earnings
Book Value

other financial data
Current Ratio
Gearing Ratio
Net Debt Equity Ratio

ebit and ebitda 
EBIT
EBITDA

2011

 123,057 

 8,477 
 13,036 
 21,513 

 314,808 
 134,410 
 180,399 

 3.19 
 20.96 

 1.53 
 0.50 
 0.18 

 17,044 
 25,366

2010

 105,199 

 15,575 
 746 

 16,322 

 326,324 
 176,863 
 149,460 

 2.42 
 17.44 

 1.61 
 0.76 
 0.37 

 20,608 
 28,278 

amount

 17,857 

 (7,098)
 12,289 

 5,191

 (11,515)
 (42,454)

 30,938 

 0.77 
 3.52 

 (0.08)
 (0.25)
 (0.18)

%

17%

-46%
1647%

32%

-4%
-24%

21%

32%
20%

-5%
-34%
-50%

2011 vs 2010
increase (decrease)
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Revenue Contribution
Food, Agro-industrial and Commodities businesses
Air Transportation 
Real Estate and Hotels
Petrochemicals 
Banking
Other Businesses

 67,168 
 33,935 
 12,594 

 4,782 
 2,360 
 2,218 

 123,057

EBITDA Contribution
Food, Agro-industrial and Commodities businesses
Air Transportation
Real Estate and Hotels 
Banking
Other Businesses

 10,181 
 6,203 
 6,467 

 663 
 1,852 

 25,366 

54%

41%

28%

24%

10%

25%

7%

4%
2%

2%

3%
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Message from the 

CHAIRMAN AND 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER 
and the 

PRESIDENT AND 
CHIEF OPERATING 
OFFICER

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

We are pleased to report that your company, JG Summit Holdings, Inc., posted another 
record breaking year in 2011. Net income attributable to equity holders of the parent 
company amounted to PhP21.51 billion in 2011, representing a 31.8% increase from last 
year’s PhP16.32 billion. The surge in earnings was primarily due to the gain arising from 
the sale of our stake in Digital Telecommunications Philippines, Inc. (Digitel) to Philippine 
Long Distance Telephone Company (PLDT) which amounted to PhP13.04 billion. Profits 
from continuing operations, however, dipped 45.6% to PhP8.48 billion from PhP15.58 
billion in 2010 because of high input costs, foreign exchange (forex) movements and capital 
markets volatility.  

The Eurozone debt crisis and the slowdown in the US economy contributed to the 
volatility of the fixed income and the forex markets, and this negatively affected the value 
of the Group’s financial assets. Tensions in the Middle East and structural changes in the 
demand and supply of fossil fuels, on the other hand, exerted continuing upward pressure 
on the price of crude oil, and this in turn affected the profit margins of Cebu Air. Cost 
inputs for our food business continued to remain elevated and as such, the margins of 
URC were also negatively affected. Revenue growth however, remained buoyant on the 
back of the successful launch of new snack and beverage products, the delivery of five new 
aircraft which expanded Cebu Pacific Air’s routes, and the resilient rise in rental income 
from our hotels, shopping malls and office buildings. Rising overseas Filipino workers 
(OFW) remittances, tourist arrivals and the continuing expansion of the business process 
outsourcing (BPO) industry, remain the major factors supporting the growth of consumer 
of demand in the macro economy. 
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Despite the challenging macro-economic environment, our company has achieved key 
milestones in 2011 that boosted the Group’s financial standing:

PLDT, valuing Digitel at PhP74.1 billion, 
the largest ever acquisition transaction in Philippine corporate history. As a result, 
we generated nearly US$600m in cash from the sale of our Option shares to NTT 
and First Pacific, and acquired an 8% stake in PLDT from the share-swap portion of 
the transaction. A portion of the cash proceeds were used to prepay the US$300m 
syndicated loan due on 16 June 2013.

Robinsons Land Corporation (RLC) was recently awarded by Asiamoney as the 
“Best Managed Company in the Philippines under the Small Cap Category”. In 2011, 
RLC successfully raised PhP13.65 billion in gross proceeds from the 1:2 stock rights 
offering priced at PhP10.00 per share.  Proceeds from the rights offering increased 
RLC’s ability to enhance its existing land bank and the completion of its various 
development projects. 

Cebu Air, Inc. (Cebu Pacific) also received similar accolades as the “2011 LCC of 
the year” while President and CEO Lance Gokongwei was named “LCC CEO of the 
year” during the February 2012 Low Cost Airlines World, Asia Pacific Conference. 
Cebu Pacific remains as the country’s No. 1 domestic airline in terms of total number 
of passengers flown with 46.0% market share as per the Civil Aeronautics Board 
(CAB) in 2011. 

URC International posted 
another strong growth in revenues at 39% to US$443m, nearly a six-fold increase 
from the US$80m revenues generated in fiscal year (FY) 2003. Now recognized for 
its growing presence in the Philippines and in Asia, URC was added to the MSCI 
benchmark index in the second half of last year.

JG Summit’s Core Earnings before taxes, excluding the extraordinary  gains from sale 
of Digitel, the effects of foreign exchange and market valuation losses, declined by 14.2% to 
PhP15.39 billion in 2011 from PhP17.93 billion in 2010. Elevated prices of URC’s cost inputs 
and high jet fuel prices for Cebu Air, are behind this decline in consolidated core EBIT.

Consolidated revenues grew by 17.0% YoY to a record level of PhP123.06 billion from 
last year’s PhP105.20 billion as all subsidiaries posted impressive revenue growth. Our 
equity income from associates and joint ventures, however, declined 19.9% from PhP2.77 
billion to PhP2.22 billion due to the lower income take-up from Singapore-based affiliate, 
United Industrial Corp. Ltd. (UIC). JG Summit owns a 36.09% stake in UIC.  

Consolidated EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and 
Amortization) for the year dropped 10.3% to PhP25.37 billion from last year’s PhP28.28 
billion due mainly to stubbornly high input costs as mentioned above.

As of end December 2011, the Group’s balance sheet remained strong, with a current 
ratio of 1.53:1. Boosted by the US$595 million proceeds from the PLDT shares option sale, 
the Group’s financial gearing ratio significantly improved from 0.76:1 in 2010 to 0.50:1 in 
2011 and net debt to equity from 0.37:1 in 2010 to 0.18:1 this year. 

The Group’s capital expenditure (capex) in 2011 amounted to PhP29.38 billion, a 46.0% 
increase from last year’s capex spending of PhP20.13 billion. RLC registered the biggest 
capex spending for 2011 funded partly from the proceeds of the rights issue, accounting for 
37.7% of the total followed by JGS Petrochem at 28.0% for the on-going construction of the 
naphtha cracker plant. URC and Cebu Pacific accounted for the third and fourth biggest 
capex spending at 15.5% and 14.4%, respectively, for the expansion of URC’s regional 
capacities and for the continued refleeting program of Cebu Pacific.
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Below is a brief discussion on each of the subsidiaries’ 
operating performance:

URC reported 16.4% growth in net sales and services to 
record high PhP67.17 billion for FY ending 30 September 2011 
from PhP57.72 billion in FY 2010, led by the International 
branded consumer group and its sugar division.  URC 
remained as the biggest revenue contributor of the Group 
accounting for 54.6% of the Group’s total revenues in 2011. 
On high input costs, EBIT (earnings before interest and 
taxes) margin fell by 300bps. With this, EBITDA declined 
by 7.3% to PhP10.16 billion from PhP10.96 billion in 2010. 
Net income attributable to equity holders of the parent 
declined 40.7% to PhP4.64 billion from PhP7.82 billion last 
year because of a mark to market loss of PhP1.16 billion this 
year compared to a mark to market gain of PhP2.01 billion 
last year. Despite the weak earnings performance, the 
company’s net income was the largest contributor to the 
Group’s net income from continuing operations at 35.1% in 
2011. On weak earnings, return on average equity (ROAE) 
managed to stay at double-digit but lower at 11.3% in FY 
2011 from 20.3% in FY 2010.

Cebu Pacific posted 16.7% growth in gross revenues 
in 2011 to PhP33.94 billion from Php29.09 billion, 
mainly attributed to the 14.1% increase in passenger 
volume. This accounted for 27.6% of the Group’s 
total revenues in 2011 and was the second largest 
revenue contributor of the Group. However, costs 
and operating expenses increased faster than 
revenue growth at 34.3% to PhP30.41 billion 
in 2011 due to the 39.3% increase in average 
aviation fuel prices. As a result, EBIT and 
EBITDAR (earnings before interest, taxes, 
depreciation and amortization and rent 
expenses) declined by 45.3% and 22.4% 
to PhP3.53 billion and PhP7.88 billion, 
respectively. Net income for the year 
amounted to PhP3.62 billion, 47.6% lower 
than the net income of PhP6.92 billion in 
2010. Cebu Pacific is the second biggest 
contributor of the Group’s net income from 
continuing operations at 28.7%. With the 
drop in net earnings in 2011 and its IPO in 
October 2010, CEB’s ROAE declined but 
still higher than industry averate at 19.6% 
in 2011 from 55.0% in 2010. 

Lance Y. Gokongwei
President and COO
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Robinsons Land Corporation (RLC) generated a historical high 
net income attributable to equity holders of the parent of PhP3.97 
billion in its FY ending 30 September 2011. This is an increase of 
10.6% from last year’s PhP3.59 billion due to the strong performance 
of all of the company’s business units. This accounted for about 
28.6% of the Group’s net income from continuing operations in 2011. 
Revenues grew by 19.0% to PhP12.59 billion from PhP10.58 billion 
in FY 2010 RLC’s consolidated revenues accounted for 10.2% share 
of the Group’s revenues. EBIT and EBITDA stood at PhP4.35 billion 
and PhP6.47 billion or an increase of 12.6% and 11.9% from 2010 
levels, respectively. With the recapitalization from the stock rights 
offering in Apr 2011, RLC’s ROAE slightly drop but still stayed at 
double-digit to 10.2% in FY 2011 from 13.0% the previous year.

JG Summit Petrochemicals Corporation’s (JGSPC) revenues 
surged by 44.6% for FY 2011 ending September to Php4.78 billion on 
the back of 42.7% increase in sales volume and higher selling prices 
of its Polypropylene and Polyethylene resins. EBIT and EBITDA, 
however, posted higher losses due to inventory write-offs and 
higher volume consumed and prices of bunker fuel. As a result of 
this, net loss was likewise higher at PhP383.97 million from net 
loss of PhP102.15 million in FY 2010.

Robinsons Bank Corporation (RBC) registered net earnings 
of PhP384.38 million in 2011, a 26.7% expansion from last 
year. The increase is mainly due to higher interest income 
and trading gains. As of end December 2011, total resources 
of the bank amounted to PhP31.52 billion from end 2010 level 
of PhP24.80 billion. Loans increased to PhP13.18 billion from 
last year’s PhP10.49 billion, deposit liabilities grew by 35.8% to 
PhP25.19 billion and NPL ratio declined from 5.7% to 3.2%. The 
bank’s capital adequacy ratio is very solid at 29.1%, significantly 
higher than the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas’ requirement of 
10.0% and the industry’s average of 16.4%.  

Equity in net earnings from associated companies and joint 
ventures decreased by 19.9% to PhP2.22 billion in 2011 from 
PhP2.77 billion in 2010. The decline of the equity income 
is principally due to United Industrial Corporation, Ltd 
(UIC). The Singapore based property company posted a 15.5% 
drop in net income from operations to S$200.23 million in 
2011 from S$237.01 million in 2010 primarily due to the 59.0% 
decline in residential condo sales. Since the group’s policy for 
the valuation of property, plant and equipment is based on cost 
method, the equity income taken up by the group represents 
the adjustment amounts after reversal of the effect in the 
income statement of the revaluation of the said assets.   

James L. Go
Chairman and CEO
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outlook

The year 2012 is going to be another challenging year for the Group. The increase in fuel 
prices remains unabated. Nonetheless, we are seeing bright spots in the horizon such as 
the expanding tourist arrivals with government putting more focus on attracting foreign 
visitors, sustained growth in OFW remittances, soaring BPO sector and rising private 
investments. These factors will help support the growth of our businesses this year.  

From the proceeds of the PLDT share option sale, the Group’s net gearing declined 
to 18% from 37% prior to the PLDT deal. Having low gearing coupled with rising cash 
flows from the annual cash dividends that we expect to receive from  subsidiaries and our 
investment in PLDT, the Group is in enviable position to expand the existing businesses, 
fund bulk of the construction of the naphtha cracker plant and enter into new ventures.

In our food business, we expect URC International to continue to be the main driver 
for growth in FY2012. With the strong sales performance of white coffee mixes and 
Chicharron ni Mang Juan, the domestic branded food group is expected to post double-
digit growth in revenues in FY2012 from an only 6.8% growth in FY 2011. With the drop 
in prices of some key commodities, margins and earnings are expected to partially recover 
this year. We retired the US$200m, 8.25% bond on 20 Jan 2012 by repaying a net amount 
of US$187.6m using a combination of cash and revolving credit. This has further boosted 
the balance sheet of URC. URC will take on major initiatives this year to further 
expand the business and improve our margins. We will protect margins by closely 
monitoring the commodity prices and implement pricing actions when warranted 
and launch higher priced products to balance our sales mix. Moreover, URC has 
earmarked US$120 million in capex spending for this fiscal year, 20% higher 
than last year, the bulk of which is set aside for the branded food business 
as we expect greater traction from the international business and renewed 
growth in our domestic business. 

In our airline business, we will continue to pursue a growth strategy 
of increasing flight frequencies and adding new destinations while keeping 
our unit cost as one of the lowest in the world. We are taking net delivery 
of 46 new Airbus planes on programmed basis over the next nine years, 
bringing the total number of our fleet to 83 by 2021. We will continue to look 
for ways to improve yields by focusing on increasing our ancillary revenues. 
The competitive landscape is expected to become tougher while jet fuel 
prices have remained high. Early in the year, we announced that we will be 
flying to longer distances. Unique to the Philippines is a large and growing 
overseas Filipino population. Of the top 10 medium to long haul markets from 
the Philippines, only two destinations are served by home-based carrier. Further, 
several of these destinations have no direct service. To cater to this underserved 
market, we will initially lease four Airbus A330-300 for our medium to long haul 
flights, with the first two to be delivered in the second half of 2013. Taking the same 
strategy as the short-haul, we will offer fares that are discounted at 30-35% compared 
to full-serviced carriers. We can achieve this by having the highest seat configuration 
and by flying direct to these destinations. 



Lance Y. Gokongwei
President and COO

James L. Go
Chairman and CEO

9

Funded in part by stock rights proceeds, cash on hand and internally generated funds, 
RLC’s landbank increased by almost 100 hectares on a net basis to 465 hectares as of end 
September 2011. This level of landbank is suitable for four to five years of development. We 
will open three new malls in FY2012 in Magnolia, Quezon City; Puerto Princesa, Palawan 
and Calasiao, Pangasinan and expand two of our existing malls, thereby increasing our 
GLA for the shopping malls by 12%. For FY 2013, four new malls are slated to be opened, 
in addition to the expansion of an existing mall. Four Go Hotels will be opened in FY 2012, 
increasing the number of our hotel rooms by 38% to 1,505. Go Hotels Palawan, Dumaguete 
and Tacloban were opened in February, March and April of this year, respectively. Go 
Hotels Bacolod will follow soon. Construction of the two new office buildings, Cyberscape 
Alpha and Cybergate Beta, are scheduled to be completed by mid-2013. With demand for 
office spaces from the BPO industry estimated at 300,000 to 350,000 sqm a year as per an 
independent study, we will try to cash-in on this demand by scouting for additional land to 
purchase to build more office buildings. 

PLDT remains a core portfolio investment of the Group as we still expect growth in the 
business. We are the single largest Filipino shareholder with our 8% stake in PLDT. Cost 
efficiencies, network optimization and acceleration in the roll-out of the latest telecoms 
technology are expected to be realized with the merged company. PLDT is going to be 

dividends accretive to the Group. In the last five years, PLDT declared 100% of its core 
earnings as cash dividends. 

Construction of our naphtha cracker plant is on track. Commercial 
operation for the plant is scheduled sometime in 1Q 2014. The Petrochem 

business is going to be the fourth largest leg of the group with expected 
turnover of US$1 billion per annum once production is at full steam. Total 
project cost is estimated to reach US$800m which includes the cracker, 
the expansion of our existing polyethelene capacity from 200,000 
metric tons (MT) to 320,000MT and tankage facilities for crude C4 
exports. Our petrochemical plants will provide at least two thirds of 
the country’s total demand for polypropylene and polyethylene resins. 
JGSPC is expected to export approximately 25% of its polymer output 
on its first year of operations.

RobinsonsBank finally acquired its commercial banking license 
in mid 2011. In addition to the Bank’s organic growth in the traditional 
banking business of lending, branch banking and treasury operations, 
RobinsonsBank aims to become a significant player in the banking 

industry via mergers and acquisitions. With high capital adequacy ratio, 
the Bank is poised to grow further in the coming years. 

acknowledgement

We could not have achieved all of this if not for your trust and confidence in the 
management and staff of the Group. We would like to thank each and everyone 

who have helped push the company to new highs. We hope that you will continue 
to be with us as we journey forward and venture into new opportunities. 
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Making Life Better

JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. (JGS) is one of the largest 
and most diverse conglomerates in the Philippines 
today, with vast business interests in food manufac-
turing, real estate development and management, air 
transportation, telecommunications, petrochemicals 
and banking services. JG Summit’s businesses are 
leaders in their respective industries, proof of more 
than 50 years of valuable business experience. It 
conducts business throughout the Philippines and in 
the ASEAN region

The business of JG Summit started in the 50s when 
Universal Corn Products, Inc. (now Universal Robina 
Corporation) was established to operate a cornstarch 
plant in Manila. Since then, JG Summit has pioneered 
breakthroughs, broadened its enterprise and stayed 
at the forefront in every phase of the country's rise 
to development - the entrepreneur who invested in 
agribusiness and the manufacture of feeds and prime 
food commodities; the visionary who channeled 
resources and expanded into financial services and 
property, all backbones of a growing economy; the 
captain of industry who invested in telecommuni-

cations, petrochemicals and air transportation, all 
requisites for industrialization; the innovator, who 
continually provides value and fun in snacking; and 
the new regional multinational, who has embraced the 
challenge of global competitiveness with zeal.

JG Summit has six (6) core businesses: branded 
consumer, agro-industrial and commodity food 
products through Universal Robina Corporation; real 
estate and property development through Robinsons 
Land Corporation and United Industrial Corporation 
(in Singapore); telecommunications through Philip-
pine Long Distance Telephone Company; petrochemi-
cals through JG Summit Petrochemicals Corporation 
and JG Summit Olefins Corporation; air transporta-
tion services through Cebu Air, Inc.; and financial 
services through Robinsons Bank Corporation.

JG Summit's place in Philippine business has for 
its cornerstone a business portfolio of market leaders, 
a solid financial position, a formidable management 
team, and a vision of leading the country to global 
competitiveness and making life better for every 
Filipino.

HOLDING COMPANY

JG SUMMIT
HOLDINGS, INC.
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HOLDING COMPANY: NEWS

On 26 October 2011, the Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company (PLDT) 
has successfully completed the acquisition of a majority interest in Digital 
Telecommunications Philippines, Inc. (Digitel) from JG Summit Holdings, Inc. and 
other shareholders of Digitel, in a landmark share swap transaction, valuing the latter at 
PhP69.2 billion.

Together with 3.277 billion shares representing 51.55% of Digitel’s outstanding 
common stock, PLDT also acquired the zero-coupon bonds issued by Digitel Group to 
JG Summit, which were assumed to be convertible or exchangeable into 18.6 billion 
Digitel shares, and assumed PhP34.1 billion in advances made by JG Summit to Digitel 
Group (collectively, the “Enterprise Assets”). As payment for the Enterprise Assets, PLDT 
issued 27,679,210 new shares of common stock at the issue price of PhP2,500 per PLDT 
share. As a result, the JG Summit Group held approximately 12.9% of PLDT’s expanded 
outstanding common stock. 

lock-up and option agreements

The PLDT shares that were issued as payment for the Enterprise Assets are subject to 
a lock-up period of one year or until 25 October 2012 during which JG Summit and the 
other sellers may not transfer or encumber such PLDT shares without the consent of 
PLDT.

PLDT has granted consents to the potential sale by JG Summit of 5.81 million and 
4.56 million PLDT shares under separate option agreements that the company has 
entered into with an associate company of First Pacific Company Limited and NTT 
Docomo, Inc., respectively. The sale of the PLDT option shares were consummated in 
November 2011 for total gross proceeds of nearly US$600 million. The share option sale 
has brought down JG Summit’s stake in PLDT to approximately 8.0% from 12.9%. 
The company is represented in PLDT’s board with one board seat. 

A Landmark Telco Transaction
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tender offer

The transaction triggered a mandatory tender offer for the acquisition of the remaining 
48.45% of Digitel shares held by the public, PLDT launched a tender offer for such 
shares that ended on 16 January 2012. Under the terms of the tender offer, Digitel 
shareholders were given an option to sell at PhP1.6033 per Digitel share or swap their 
holdings for PLDT common shares at a swap ratio of 1,559.28 Digitel shares for every new 
PLDT common share. The tender offer was taken up by majority of the shareholders, 
bringing the total transaction value to PhP74.1 billion and making it the largest buyout in 
Philippine corporate history. 

impact on the telecommunications industry

With PLDT’s successful acquisition of Digitel, the consumers have begun to realize the 
substantial benefits to be reaped from the combined expertise, resources and capabilities 
of the PLDT Group and Digitel. 

PLDT’s Chairman, Manuel V. Pangilinan, remarked: “PLDT is extremely pleased 
to welcome Digitel to the PLDT Group. PLDT will continue to provide its consumers 
with the best value in terms of price, quality and range of products and services and we 
have committed to continue offering “unlimited” type of services in fulfillment of this 
promise. In addition, Sun subscribers can benefit from PLDT’s extensive infrastructure 
and varied service offerings.”

On the other hand, JG Summit Chairman, James L. Go, said of the transaction:“This 
transaction ensures that Digitel remains in good hands. Together, the PLDT-Digitel 
Group will be well-positioned to compete not only with formidable existing competitors 
but with well-funded new entrants as well.”



UNIVERSAL ROBINA CORPORATION (URC) is one of the 
leading Southeast Asian food and beverage companies, 
and is also a major player in agro-industrial & 
commodity businesses in the Philippines.
The Branded Consumer Foods Group (BCFG) is home 
to familiar brands like Chippy, Piattos, Magic, Maxx,  
and Cloud 9, under the Jack ‘n Jill mega brand. Jack ‘n 
Jill has grown to represent the simple pleasures, fun 
and camaraderie of snacking, making the company the 
leading snackfoods manufacturer in the Philippines.

URC also successfully entered the ready-to-drink 
beverage market with its flagship product, C2 Green 
Tea, which is a first mover in the domestic market. 
The company continues to expand in other Beverage 
powdered and ready to drink categories such as coffee 
mixes, energy drinks, milk, water and juice. URC is 
also present in the Grocery categories through its 
joint ventures with Nissin of Japan (Nissins-URC) for 
noodles, and Con-Agra (Hunts-URC) for beans and 
sauces.

These distinctly Filipino brands are also available 
outside the Philippines. URC has manufacturing 
facilities in five countries in Southeast Asia namely 
Thailand, Vietnam, Malaysia, Indonesia, and China 
and sales companies in HK and Singapore.  Familiar 
Jack ‘n Jill brands like Cloud 9, Cream-O, Magic 

Flakes, and Roller Coaster are readily available in 
retail outlets across the ASEAN countries and parts of 
China. These URC products are also being enjoyed in 
other parts of the world, with exports to the Middle 
East, North America, Europe, Korea, Japan and 
Australia.

URC’s Agro-Industrial Group (AIG) is consoli-
dated under the Robina Agri Partners (RAP), which 
combines the strengths, experience and expertise of 
Universal Corn Products, Robichem Laboratories, and 
the Robina Farms poultry and hog divisions, into one 
team. RAP provides high quality feeds, veterinary 
medicines, live animals - Hogs and Chicken - to the 
country’s poultry and livestock industries. RAP also 
provides consumer products, namely premium meats 
and eggs. 

URC’s Commodity Foods Group (CFG) is engaged 
in flour milling, pasta production and distribution 
under the URC Flour Division, as well as sugarcane 
milling and raw sugar refining under the URC Sugar 
Division. URC is also engaged in the manufacturing of 
product packaging through URC Packaging.

Universal Robina Corporation is committed to 
bringing Filipino taste and culture worldwide, in line 
with JG Summit’s vision to make life better, not only 
for Filipinos, but for the rest of the world.

FOOD

URC started out as a cornstarch 
manufacturing company in 
1954. With Panda Cornstarch 
as its first brand, URC soon 
expanded to include the 
Jack 'n Jill brand of fun snack-
foods, Blend 45 and Great 
Taste coffee, C2 ready-to-drink 
tea, and many other Filipino 
favorites

URC launched the first locally 
manufactured coffee blend in 
the 1960s with Blend 45. With 
its disctinctly Filipino blend and 
flavor, it soon became a local 
favorite. URC also introduce 
the first 3-in-1 coffee mix with 
Great Taste.

URC's first branded snack 
product was Jack 'n Jill Chiz 
Curls. It has since been followed 
by Chippy, Nova, Piattos and 
many other fun snacks that I 
have become Filipino favorites 
for generations.

URC facts

14



FOOD

branded consumer foods group (bcfg)

snacks
Jack ‘n Jill Chiz Curls, Jack ‘n Jill Chippy,  
Jack ‘n Jill Nova, Jack ‘n Jill Piattos, 
Jack ‘n Jill Roller Coaster, Jack ‘n Jill Potato Chips, 
Granny Goose Tortillos

candies
Jack ‘n Jill Maxx, Jack ‘n Jill XO, 
Jack ‘n Jill Dynamite

chocolates
Jack ‘n Jill Cloud 9, Jack ‘n Jill Nips

biscuits
Jack ‘n Jill Magic Flakes, Jack ‘n Jill Cream-O,  
Jack ‘n Jill Dewberry, Jack ‘n Jill Pretzels

bakery
Jack ‘n Jill Quake

beverage
Great Taste, Blend 45, Refresh, C2 Green Tea, 
Hidden Spring

noodles
Payless

joint ventures
Nissin, Hunts

URC entered the ready-to-
drink market in 2004 with C2 
Green Tea. Originally available 
in lemon and green tea flavors, 
C2 was a runaway, creating the 
RTD Tea market in the 
Philippines and becoming 
URC's #1 selling brand within 
5 years of launce even the the 
face of still competition from 
multinational brands.

URC sells more C2 Green Tea in 
Vietnam than in the Philippines 
almost 3 to 1. While the initial 
attempt to sell C2 in more tradi-
tional tea flavors of jasmine and 
lotus did not excite the market, 
URC's C2 came roaring back 
using the sweeter fruit-flavored 
formulation that has endeared 
Filipino consumers. Vietnam's 
favorite is C2 Green Tea lemon 
flavor.

URC expanded in the Asean 
market in 2000 after the 
international investments of 
the Gokongwei family in food 
manufacturing was folded-in 
into the company. From an 
initial of three manufacturing 
locations in Thailand, China, 
and Malaysia, two more were 
added—Indonesia in 2001 and 
Vietnam in 2005.

urc packaging   
Manufactures and sells bi-axially oriented polypro-
pylene (BOPP) films primarily used in the packaging 
industry

agro-industrial - robina agri partners 
(rap)

universal corn products (ucp)   
Produces and distributes animal feeds for fish, 
hogs and poultry

robina farms  
Breeds and grows hogs, broiler chicks and layer chicks

robichem   
Manufactures animal health products

commodity foods group

urc flour division  
Produces and distributes hard flour, soft flour and 
specialty flour. It also manufactures and sells pasta 
products

urc sugar division  
Provides sugarcane milling and raw sugar refining 
services, trades raw sugar, and sells raw and refined 
sugar and molasses
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FOOD: NEWS

THE BRANDED CONSUMER FOOD PRODUCTS OF URC have long been part of the lives 
of millions of Filipino consumers. “Jack ‘n Jill” and “C2”, the URC megabrands, have 
become by-words whenever Filipinos talk about snackfoods or ready-to-drink beverages, 
respectively. With its innovative and high quality products, wide distribution, and 
effective marketing, URC has shaped the local branded foods industry and continues to 
make its mark up to this day, with successful new products such as Chicharron ni Mang 
Juan and Great Taste 3-in-1 White Coffee, just to name a couple. It continues to dominate 
in key categories such as snacks, candies, chocolates, and ready-to-drink tea, and is a 
strong presence in several others.         

In the past few years, URC has significantly expanded in other countries within the 
region. It has successfully translated the products and expertise that have worked so well 
in the home market to the different countries under its URC Branded Consumer Foods 
(BCF) International division.  

Fiscal Year 2011 was a banner year for the BCF International business. It drove the 
overall growth for total URC with its all-time high revenues, registering a stellar growth 
rate of 39% (in US Dollar terms) versus FY 2010, and with almost all countries posting 
record sales. It also managed to grow absolute profits despite the increase in world input 
costs, the main challenge for branded consumer foods businesses in 2011. URC Thailand 
and URC Vietnam beefed up this sales momentum and contributed as much as 75% of 
revenues. Here are some highlights on the different countries that comprise the business.

urc vietnam 
FY 2011 revenue growth of 52% versus FY 2010; record sales
The youngest company in the group; the fastest growing and biggest contributor to 
revenues
Achieved strong challenger positions in both ready-to-drink tea and biscuits; steadily 
expanding to other products

urc thailand
FY 2011 revenue growth of 34% versus FY 2010; record sales 
Solidified its leadership in biscuits and wafers (a huge market in the country) and 
remains significantly ahead of competitors  in terms of market share
Tallied double-digit growth across all its product categories
Further strengthened its snackfoods portfolio with successful new product launches 
such as flat chips, and posted strong sales with its cookies and glucose biscuits  

URC Branded Consumer Foods 
Group: Expanding its Borders

URC continuously innovates 
and introduces new products 
both locally and in the region 
to constantly excite the 
market. In 2011, URC success-
fully launched extruded and 

pelletized snacks called 
Chicharron ni Mang Juan 
as well as Great Taste White 
Coffee mixes, a first in the 
domestic market.

URC also supports the livestock 
industry, with Robina Farms, 
which raises hogs and poultry; 
Universal Corn Products, which 
provides a variety of feeding 
and nutritional needs for them; 

URC facts
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urc malaysia and singapore
FY 2011 revenue growth of 30% versus FY 2010; record sales
URC Malaysia was the fastest growing company among its peers in the industry
Significant growth due to renewed focus on strengthening the distribution 
infrastructure of the company, which further pushed our competitive portfolio of 
snackfoods products
Chocolates business, with Cloud 9 and Nips as flagship products, continued to grow 
rapidly 

urc indonesia
FY 2011 revenue growth of 12% versus FY 2010, putting the business back on the right 
track 
Successfully refocused our distribution on the more populated areas (Java and 
Sumatra), which contributed to sales growth and lessening of our selling expenses 
All product categories grew vs. the previous year (FY 2010)  
Projecting significant growth in FY 2012 on the back of new and exciting product 
offerings  as well as further reaping the advantages of a more focused sales strategy 

urc china and hong kong
FY 2011 revenue growth of 43% versus FY 2010 despite a very competitive environ-
ment; record sales  
All product categories grew significantly with Biscuits and Coffee sales more than 
doubling FY 2010 numbers. Cereals/Oats, continues to be the top category 
On top of its solid sales in its home country, URC China also produced and supplied 
key products (Biscuits, Coffee and Creamer) to the different URC affiliates, including 
the Philippines. By augmenting the individual production capacities of the other 
affiliates, URC’s China business contributed to the continued sales momentum of the 
whole group.

There is much anticipation and excitement for the coming years as URC’s presence in the 
region continues to grow and be recognized. We continue to build our strong footprint in 
the ASEAN, competing head-on with both large local players and multinationals. With 
its successful forays into foreign markets, URC has achieved its founder’s vision of being a 
true Philippine multinational. 

and Robichem, which takes care 
of their veterinary requirements. 
URC ensures healthy, well-tended 
livestock - justone of the ways 
URC helps make life better for the 
Filipino.

URC is a major player in 
commodity foods, with strong 
positions in flour milling, sugar 
milling, and sugar refining. This 
also ensures consistent supply 

of these raw materials for URC's 
branded consumer foods group. 
URC supplies approximately 
a tenth of the country's total 
demand for flour and sugar.
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PROPERTY

ROBINSONS LAND CORPORATION (RLC) is one of the 
Philippines' leading real estate developers in terms of 
revenues, number of projects and total project size.  
It is engaged in the development and operation of 
shopping malls, office buildings, hotels, residential 
mid and high-rise structure and mixed use devel-
opments, as well as land and residential housing 
developments located in key cities and urban areas 
nationwide. RLC adopts a diversified business model, 
with both an "investment" component, in which RLC 
develops, owns and operates commercial real estate 
projects (principally shopping malls, office buildings 
and hotels) and a "development" component, in which 
RLC develops residential real estate projects for sale 
(principally residential condominiums, upper-middle 
to high-end residential developments and low and 
middle-cost lots and houses in its subdivision develop-
ments).

RLC is one of the country’s largest mixed-use 
property developers.  Developments like Robinsons 
Galleria complex has two office towers, two deluxe 
hotels, an upscale residential condominium anchored 
by a flagship shopping mall while Robinsons Place 
Manila complex has five residential towers fully inte-
grated by another flagship shopping mall. The Forum 
Robinsons complex houses the flagship Go Hotel, four 
office buildings, three residential towers and a mall. 
The Robinsons Magnolia Town Center complex in 
Quezon City, the fourth mixed-use development in 
Metro Manila, is slated for opening in the second half 
of 2012.

Each and every project of Robinsons Land Corpo-
ration has led to the rise of thriving, harmonious 
communities in line with JG Summit’s vision to make 
life better for the Filipino nation.

RLC was incorporated in June 
1980 to serve as the real estate 
arm of JG Summit Holdings, Inc.

RLC pioneered the mixed-use 
property development concept 
in the country where work, 
relaxation and play can be 
found in one place. Robinsons 
Galleria complex, which opened 
in 1990, is the company’s first 
and premier mixed-use develop-
ment project where two deluxe 
hotels, two high rise office 

towers, an upscale residential 
condominium, and its flagship 
mall are all fully integrated. 
More mixed-use development 
projects followed thereafter 
and more are planned for future 
openings. 

-
ment and hotel management 
activities of JG Summit group 
was consolidated under RLC 
through the share swap trans-
actions of two affiliated entities, 

Manila Midtown Hotels 
and Land Corporation and 
Robinsons Inn.

RLC is the first JG Summit 
company to list in the Philippine 
Stock Exchange in 1989 and a 
successful follow-on offering 
in 2006. It was also the first to 
list in Philippine Dealing and 
Exchange Corp. (PDEX) in 2010. 
RLC carried out  three successful 
stock rights offerings, a first for 
any JG Summit company.  

RLC facts
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RLC is a leading office space 
providers to BPO companies 
in the country with 193,000 
sqm of leasable space from its 
eight office buildings. It leased 
out another 52,000 sqm of 
commercial center space to BPO 
companies.

RLC is a leading owner and 
operator of hotels in the 
Philippines with a total of 1,089 
guestrooms. The company 
successfully opened its first 
essential services/value hotel 
chain in the country, Go Hotels, 
viewed as a complement to its 
other property developments and 
also as a good strategic fit to an 
affiliate company, Cebu Pacific. 
Four more Go Hotels will open in 
FY 2012.

RLC’s residential 
division was rebranded and 
categorized into four brands – 
Robinsons Luxuria, Robinsons 
Residences, Robinsons Commu-
nities and Robinsons Homes. 
The four brands vary in 
product, location, target market, 
type of development and price 
ranges to tap a broad range of 
customers and market.   

commercial centers division
Develops, leases and manages shopping malls 
throughout the Philippines. As of September 30, 2011, 
RLC operated 29 shopping malls, comprising six malls 
in Metro Manila and 23 malls in other urban areas 
throughout the Philippines. 

office buildings division
Develops office buildings for lease. As of September 30, 
2011, this division has eight office buildings located 
in Metro Manila and Cebu. These office projects are 
primarily developed as investment properties and 
leased out to tenants by the company.

hotels division
Owns and operates hotels within Metro Manila, Cebu 
City, Tagaytay City and Mandaluyong City. RLC’s 
Hotels Division currently has a portfolio of five hotels, 
the Crowne Plaza Manila Galleria, Holiday Inn Manila 
Galleria, Summit Circle Cebu (formerly Cebu Midtown 
Hotel), Tagaytay Summit Ridge Hotel and Go Hotel 
Cybergate Plaza.

residential division
Develops and sells residential developments for sale/
pre-sale. The division has in its portfolio 57 residential 
buildings and 31 housing subdivisions all over the 
country. RLC’s residential division is categorized 
into four brands – Robinsons Luxuria, Robinsons 
Residences, Robinsons Communities, and Robinsons 
Homes.

RLC's operations are divided into four business divisions.

PROPERTYPROPERTY

19



PROPERTY: NEWS

MARKET RESPONSE TO THE MAGNOLIA 
RESIDENCES continues to be very enthu-
siastic and construction of the first two 
of four towers is currently in full swing. 
What was once the location of the popular 
Magnolia Ice Cream House is now the 
site of a distinctive new development by 
Robinsons Land Corporation (RLC). The 
Magnolia Residences along N. Domingo 
and Dona Hemady Streets in the vibrant 
neighborhood of New Manila is now a 
prime real estate investment option.

The development’s strategic location 
will be hard to beat. The Magnolia Resi-
dences is particularly attractive to families 
with school-aged children because of its 
proximity to schools like St. Paul Univer-
sity, Jubilee Christian Academy, Xavier 
School, Immaculate Conception Academy 
and La Salle Greenhills. In addition, the 
development’s proximity to the LRTII 
Gilmore station makes travelling east 
to schools like Ateneo, Miriam and the 

Center for Culinary Arts; or the University of the East, San Beda, La Consolacion in 
the opposite direction, a breeze. Top-notch medical facilities such as the St. Luke’s 
Medical Center and Cardinal Santos Hospital are also situated nearby.

The Magnolia Residences will be a self-contained community that is part of a 
well masterplanned five-hectare property, the Magnolia Town Center. Across the 
exclusive residential enclave will be a world-class commercial center, Robinsons 
Magnolia.

The Robinsons Magnolia is set for completion in July 2012 and will provide 
residents all the features of a full service commercial complex. The mall will house 
a Supermarket, Department Store, Toys R Us, Handyman and Robinsons Appliance. 
Robinsons Magnolia is going to be a multi-storey luxurious shopping and entertain-
ment center with a distinct mix of shops and restaurants. It will also have four state-
of-the-art cinemas adopting stadium-style seating.

This upscale mall is envisioned to be a home to international and prestigious 
local brands and famous specialty shops. It will also feature Junior Anchor tenants 
to showcase a unique collection of deluxe brands and upcoming local retailers. To 
complement the high end feel of retail outlets, even the food court design and 
layout will be competitive with the successful modern food courts found in the 
region. There will be an alfresco area to house the specialty food outlets facing the 

Interest Remains Strong for RLC’s 
The Magnolia Residences
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focal point of the whole commercial center development - ‘The Plaza’ - a lush park and 
activity area with an eco-friendly theme where families can reacquaint with the heritage 
of Magnolia Ice Cream House.

RLC commissioned RTKL, an internationally renowned master-planner, to draft the 
conceptual drawings for the whole complex while reputable domestic design firms have 
been tasked to complete the design development.

Certainly, The Magnolia Residences is set to become a first-rate address in Quezon 
City. It is where residents can opt for custom spaces to suit their requirements. The 
one- bedroom, two- bedroom, executive two- bedroom and three-bedroom units have 
been efficiently designed to bring a new beat to traditional city living while at the same 
time embracing the tempo of the serene and secure neighborhood that is unique to New 
Manila’s upscale neighborhood.

The one- and two-bedroom units are aimed at couples or families that are just 
starting out while the larger units are perfect for larger families. Balconies are an added 
feature of selected units and upper-floor unit owners will enjoy panoramic views of the 
environs such as Greenhills, Horseshoe, Ortigas, New Manila and San Juan.

Adding premium to condominium living, amenities like a sun deck function area, 
swimming pool, wading pool with jacuzzi, Zen garden, function room, children’s 
playroom, game room, library, multi-purpose room, fitness center, badminton court, 
rock garden, jogging path, gazebo and a tree house have been incorporated in the devel-
opment.

To experience what quality living is all about, view The Magnolia Residences model unit at
N. Domingo Street, New Manila. To learn more about The Magnolia Residences, visit
www.robinsonsresidences.com or call phone numbers 397-0101, 636-0888 or 0922-838-0888.
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AIRLINE

CEBU PACIFIC (CEB) is the largest airline in the Philip-
pines and one of the fastest growing low-cost carriers 
in the world. It has a unique low-fare, great-value 
strategy that allows travelers to enjoy year-round 
affordable flights to 32 local and 19 international 
destinations. CEB uses a tiered pricing system that 
provides ultra-low fares through advanced bookings, 
making air travel a truly viable option for the Filipino. 
Cebu Pacific believes that it’s time every Juan flies.

More than this, CEB allows everyone to enjoy 
many firsts in the Philippine aviation industry-
-innovations such as e-ticketing, web check-in, self 
check-in, seat selection, prepaid baggage allowance 
and internet booking through www.cebupacificair.
com. 

With a fleet of 38 aircraft with an average age of 
3.6 years, CEB operates the largest and youngest fleet 
in the Philippines. To support its growth require-

ments, CEB will take delivery of 22 more Airbus A320 
aircraft in the next five years. In addition, CEB also 
expects delivery of four Airbus A330 wide-body jets 
from 2013 to 2014, and 30 Airbus A321neo aircraft 
between 2017 to 2021. These new aircraft will add 
more range, flexibility and efficiency to CEB’s fleet.

Aside from operating the most domestic flights and 
routes daily, CEB continues to expand its international 
presence as it now flies to 19 international destinations 
in the region, including major cities in China, Korea 
and Vietnam. As a true innovator in the industry, CEB 
pioneered direct flights to Cambodia, home of the 
Angkor World Heritage Site, as well as direct flights 
between Manila and Hanoi, and between Hong Kong 
and Kalibo, gateway to the paradise island of Boracay. 

CEB continues to work at making more dreams 
of flight a reality for every Juan, true to JG Summit’s 
vision to make a better life available to the Filipino.

CEB was established in 1988 
and was granted a 40-year 
congressional franchise to 
operate regional and domestic 
air transport services in 1991. 
In March 1996, the company 
launched its domestic opera-
tions and to date is now the 
largest national carrier in 
terms of passengers flown seat 
capacity, and aircraft fleet. 

In November 2001, CEB inau-
gurated its first international 
flight from Manila to Hong 
Kong.

CEB pioneered the no-frills 
approach in 2005 with the 
vision of providing great value 
fares that re-invented the 
industry and made traveling 
affordable to everyone.

In line with its commitment to 
make air travel more affordable 
and accessible for everyone, 
CEB offers low fares to the most 
extensive route network in the 
Philippines. It operates from 
four hubs: Manila, Cebu, Clark 
and Davao.

CEB flies to the most number of 
ASEAN destinations from the 
Philippines. CEB also remains 
to be the only low-cost carrier 
in the Philippines that flies to 
all three major North Asian 
markets of Korea, China and 
Japan.

CEB lowered its free baggage 
allowance and introduced the 
“Go Lite” fares in September 
2008 rewarding passengers 
without check-in luggage 
with a PhP200 fare discount. 
In addition, CEB is the first 
airline to offer e-ticketing, seat 

CEB facts
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domestic destinations
Bacolod
Boracay (Caticlan)
Busuanga (Coron)

Legazpi

international destinations
Brunei (Bandar Seri Begawan)
Cambodia (Siem Reap)
China (Guanghzhou, Macau, Shanghai, Beijing)
Hong Kong
Indonesia (Jakarta)
Japan (Osaka)
Korea (Busan, Incheon)
Malaysia (Kota Kinabalu, Kuala Lumpur)
Singapore
Taiwan (Taipei)
Thailand (Bangkok)
Vietnam (Ho Chi Minh, Hanoi)

selection and 20% off on excess 
baggage fees on selected routes 
for pre-payments made upon 
booking.

In 2008, CEB was ranked 
among the top three LCCs in 
Asia by number of passengers 
carried. And by 2010, CEB 
became the country’s largest 
national carrier flying the most 
number of passengers in and out 
of the Philippines.   

By the end of 2011, CEB had the 
largest fleet in the Philippines 
with 37 aircraft.

CEB is the Philippines’ largest 
turbo-prop operator, operating 
the most inter-island flights 
to the top tourist destinations 
in the country. The airline 
opened Siargao, Pagadian and 
Cauayan (Isabela) to air travel, 
and helped lower fares to 
Coron (Busuanga) and Boracay 
(Caticlan). 

Among CEB’s famous flight 
and cabin crew are Capt. 
Brooke Castillo, the first female 
commercial jet captain in the 
Philippines, and its Safety 
Demo dancers who garnered 
more than 11 million views on 
YouTube for their fun and inno-
vative dance.

CEB is the only Philippine 
carrier with a three-year WWF-
Philippines commitment for the 
benefit of the Philippines’ Great 
Reefs (Apo Reef and Tubbataha 
Reef). This is done through the 
pioneering climate adaptation 
program “Bright Skies for Every 
Juan.”

In 2011, CEB broke aviation 
records again when it flew more 
than 1 million passengers per 
month, for five months (April, 
May, October, November and 
December).

Laoag
Manila
Naga
Ozamiz
Pagadian
Puerto Princesa
Roxas
San Jose (Mindoro)
Siargao
Surigao
Tacloban
Tagbilaran
Tawi-Tawi
Tuguegarao
Virac
Zamboanga
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In partnership with Canada-
based CAE, CEB broke ground 
for the Philippine Academy for 
Aviation Training, its US$40-
US$50 million dollar aviation 
training joint investment in 
Clark.

CEB was recently named LCC 
of the Year, and its President 
and CEO, Mr Lance, was named 
LCC CEO of the Year in the 
Budgies and Travel Awards 
2012, covering the entire Asia-
Pacific region. It also won the 
Budgies Friendliest LCC in 2011.

It was also named the most 
sociable airline in the world 
last May 2011 by Planely.com, 
an air travel-focused social 
networking site that saw 142 
airlines joining its contest. To 
date, CEB has close to 600,000 
Facebook fans, more than 
370,000 Twitter followers, 
and close to 880,000 YouTube 
Channel views.

CEB facts

Cebu Pacific to Launch Budget 
Long-Haul Flights in Q3 2013

THE PHILIPPINES’ LARGEST NATIONAL FLAG CARRIER, Cebu Pacific 
(PSE:CEB) will commence long-haul flights in the third quarter 
of 2013. The airline will lease up to 8 Airbus A330-300 aircraft 
to serve new markets beyond the range of CEB’s current fleet of 
Airbus A320 aircraft.

The Airbus A330 has a range of up to 11 hours which means 
CEB could serve markets such as Australia, Middle East, parts of 
Europe and the US. 

“The A330-300 will give us the lowest cost per seat, allowing us 
to drive long-haul fares 35% lower than those currently offered by 
other airlines, and as much as 80% lower when CEB offers promo 
fares. This aircraft type is very well suited to the kind of network 
we want to build and the routes we want to launch,” said Lance 
Gokongwei, CEB President and CEO.

“We are exploring serving cities where large Filipino commu-
nities reside — Europe, Middle East, Oceania and the USA. Data 
indicates that more than half of Filipinos deployed in these regions 
take multiple stops and connecting flights because no home carrier 
can fly them there non-stop,” added Gokongwei. 

Since its inception in 1996, CEB has posted a good track record 
in stimulating short-haul travel of Filipinos working and residing 
overseas. Passenger traffic to and from Hong Kong, where a lot 
of Filipinos reside and work, grew by 88% since CEB started 
operating flights from Manila in 2001.

CEB President and CEO, Lance Gokongwei posts 
the answer to the question “How far can  you 
go?,” during the press conference for the airline’s 
long haul operations, which will commence on 
the second half of 2013.

AIRLINE: NEWS

CEB will lease up to 
8 Airbus A330-300 aircraft for 
its upcoming long-haul flights.
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Once JGSOC starts commercial operations in early 
2014, the country will be less dependent on the impor-
tation of PE and PP. The domestic petrochemical 
industry is currently unable to meet the growing 
demand for PE and PP resins because production is 
heavily dependent on the availability of imported 
low-priced ethylene and propylene monomers. With 
JGSOC producing a continuous domestic supply of 
ethylene and propylene monomers, locally manufac-
tured resin products will become cost-competitive 
against imported resin. This will in turn cascade to 
cost competitive downstream plastic products.

By 2013, JG Summit’s petrochemical complex is 
expected to have the following annual production 
capacities.

olefins
320,000 MT of ethylene, 190,000 MT of propylene, 
216,000 MT of pyrolysis gas, 110,000 MT to 140,000 MT 
of crude C4, and other by-products such as methane, 
pyrolysis fuel oil and acid gases

evalene® resins
320,000 MT of high density polyethylene (HDPE) and 
linear low density polyethylene (LLDPE), and 190,000 
MT of homopolymer polypropylene (HomoPP) and 
random copolymer polypropylene (RacoPP)

PETROCHEMICALS

JG SUMMIT IS A PIONEER in the petrochemical industry 
in the Philippines, and now has two wholly owned 
subsidiaries in its 100-hectare fully integrated, world-
class, PEZA-accredited petrochemical manufacturing 
complex in Brgy. Simlong, Batangas City, 120 km. 
south of Manila.  These are JG Summit Petrochemical 
Corporation (JGSPC) and JG Summit Olefins Corpo-
ration (JGSOC).

jg summit petrochemical corporation
JGSPC is the largest manufacturer of polyolefins in 
the country. It is the first and only integrated polyeth-
ylene (PE) and polypropylene (PP) resin manufacturer 
in the Philippines. It produces Evalene® branded PE 
and PP resins using UNIPOL™ technology.

jg summit olefins corporation
JGSOC is the country’s first naphtha cracker facility. 
The plant, which is scheduled for commissioning by 
second half of 2013, is being constructed at a cost of 
US$700 million.  It is designed to primarily produce 
polymer-grade ethylene and propylene, which will be 
the feedstock for the existing JGSPC polyolefins plant.

With the integration of JGSPC and JGSOC, JG 
Summit is expected to boost the Philippine plastics 
industry’s competitiveness by stabilizing the local 
supply and prices of widely used PE and PP resins. 
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JG Summit is the largest inte-
grated olefins and polyolefins 
manufacturer in the Philip-
pines.

Integrated petrochemical 
complex located in the port city 
of Batangas with one naphtha 
cracker, two polyethylene plants 
and one polypropylene plant.

JGSPC was established and 
incorporated with the Securi-
ties and Exchange Commission 

in February 24, 1994. It was 
registered with the Board of 
Investments in May of the same 
year.

Construction of the JGSPC 
plant began in December 1995. 

JGSPC operations commenced 
in March 1998.

In October 2006, JGSPC 
became wholly owned by JG 
Summit Holding, Inc.

JGSPC reached the ‘12 Million 
Safe Man-Hours Without Lost 
Time Accident’ milestone on 
February 10, 2012.

JGSOC was incorporated on 
July 31, 2008. It is the only 
naphtha cracker in the Philip-
pines. Actual engineering works 
for the project started in the last 
quarter of 2009.

JG Summit Petrochemical Corporation / JG Summit Olefins Corporation facts

pipes for water, gas, chemicals, telecommunica-
tions, mining, landfills and sewage projects. 

that are important to agriculture such as mulch, 
greenhouse and banana plantation films, fishing 
nets, and onion nets. 

ropes, tapes and labels made from Evalene® resins.

materials such as thin-walled fast food containers, 
trays, clear plates, tubs, food keepers, bottles, 
document cases, caps, woven bags, carrier bags, 
garbage bags, wet market bags, non-woven eco 
bags and pails that are produced with Evalene® 
resins. 

used to make furniture such as tables, chairs and 
drawers; houseware and utensils; and appliance 
parts. 

Evalene® resins make a contribution too as they are 
used to produce industrial and landfill liners, and 
mosquito nets. 

Evalene® resins are likewise used by other JG Summit 
subsidiaries such as Universal Robina Corporation 
and CFC Clubhouse Property, Inc. as raw material for 
many of its packaging requirements such as C2 bottle 
caps, Nissin noodle cups and films.

Evalene® resins are used as raw material for a broad range of 
consumer and industrial products.
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PETROCHEMICALS: NEWS

JG SUMMIT OLEFINS CORP (JGSOC), operator of the country’s first naphtha cracking 
facility costing about US$800 million, will produce for both the domestic and export 
markets in Asia once it starts commercial operation in the first quarter of 2014.

The company is eyeing Vietnam and China as markets for its products since its 
production capacity will exceed domestic requirements.

The naphtha cracker is expected to produce 320,000 MT of ethylene; 190,000 MT of 
propylene; 216,000 MT of pyrolysis gas; and other by products such as methane, pyrolysis 
fuel oil and acid gases totaling 925,537 MT annually.  

The project is also expanding its capacity to produce polyethylene to 310,000 MT 
annually from the original output of 200,000 MT.

“We have completed the site preparation and are now in the actual construction 
stage,” JG Summit president and chief operating officer Lance Gokongwei said, adding 
that the major components of the plant such as the furnaces, compressor and power plant 
have been ordered.

The facility will have its own 4-MW power plant using waste materials from the 
naphtha unit.

The naphtha cracker project is a back integration facility for the existing polyethylene 
and polypropylene plants of JG Summit Petrochemical Corp in Barangay Sumulong in 
Batangas City and will complete the local industry’s supply chain.

The project will provide stability to the local petrochemical industry, which has 
suffered supply shortages, particularly raw materials used in the production of plastic 
products. It will ensure the availability of resins at competitive prices.

The project is expected to directly employ 500 workers and support services could 
expand the workforce to 2,000.

JGSOC was registered with the Board of Investment in 2010 as a new producer of 
ethylene, propylene, PY gas, and other by-products.

As a strategic investment, the project is entitled to tax and non-tax incentives such 
as income tax holiday of up to six years from January 2014 or from the actual start of 
commercial operations. The project will also enjoy duty-free importation of equipment 
and protection from competing imports through a 15 percent tariff on foreign-made 
resins.

Other incentives include the deduction from taxable income of 50 percent of wages 
corresponding to the increment of direct labor, employment of foreign nationals, tax 
credit for taxes and duties on raw materials and supplies, and semi-manufactured 
products used on its export products.

Country’s First Naphtha Cracker 
to Start Operations in Early 2014 



BANKING SERVICES

ROBINSONS BANK CORPORATION is a commercial 
bank, and is owned by JG Summit Holdings, Inc. 
(JGSHI) — through JG Summit Capital Services Corp. 
(60%) and by Robinsons Holdings, Inc. (40%). 

It is the surviving entity after the Bangko Sentral 
ng Pilipinas (BSP) in December 2010 and the Securi-
ties and Exchange Commission (SEC) in May 2011, 
respectively, approved the merger of Robinsons 
Savings Bank and Robinsons Bank Corporation 
(formerly known as The Royal Bank of Scotland 
(Phils.)).

Earlier, or around the second quarter of 2010, 
JG Capital Services and Robinsons Holdings Inc. 
acquired 99.9% of the shares of The Royal Bank of 
Scotland (Phils.) and renamed it Robinsons Bank 
Corporation.

Solid Heritage of RobinsonsBank. Robinsons 
Bank had always been an attractive alternative in the 
banking industry in terms of its stability and affilia-
tion with one of the country’s leading conglomerates, 
JG Summit Holdings Inc. With its 60 and continuously 

expanding branch network nationwide, and 115 strate-
gically located on-site and off-site ATMs under the the 
Bancnet consortium, the bank delivers hallmark value 
and convenience to its customers through products 
and services deliberately crafted to conform to JG 
Summit’s business philosophy to  “make life better” 
for all Filipinos. 

With an expanded charter of a commercial bank, 
Robinsons Bank will continue the solid heritage of its 
predecessor savings bank even while the organization 
moves forward and transforms into a stronger entity, 
more capable to meet the demands of the commercial 
banking market.  The bank’s innovative product line 
includes a broad range of deposit and loans products, 
trust investments, foreign exchange and securities 
for retail customers.  Recently, the bank introduced 
its Cardless Banking Facility—which allows clients to 
do bank transactions via mobile, ATM and Internet.  
Robinsons Bank also has one of the lowest non-
performing loan ratios in the business.

Robinsons Bank is part of 
the JG Summit Holdings 
conglomerate. It maintains good 
patronage of the concession-
aires, contractors and suppliers 
of the JG Group of Companies; 
exhibiting strong deposit and 
loan acquisitions.  Robinsons-
Bank is in the company of 
leading and established corpo-
rations in the country today.

In the second quarter of 
2010, JG Capital Services and 
Robinsons Holdings Inc. (RHI) 
bought 99.9% of the shares of 
The Royal Bank of Scotland 
(Phils.). Then with the approval 
from the BSP in December 2010 
and approval from the SEC in 
May 2011, the surviving entity 
as a result of the merger with 
the Savings Bank: Robinsons 
Bank Corporation (formerly 

known as The Royal Bank of 
Scotland (Phils.)) emerged as 
the newest commercial bank 
(KB) in the industry.

merged entity, Robinsons 
Bank Corporation, is the 11th

largest commercial bank in the 
Philippines, and 28th among all 
commercial and universal banks 
combined.

Robinsons Bank facts

28



deposit products
Regular Savings & Checking Account
Tykecoon Kiddie Savings Account
Special Savings Account
Peso Time Deposit
US Dollar Savings
Time Deposit Account
Cardless ATM

consumer loan products
Home Loan
Auto Loan, Personal Loan
PLP-Secured Loan (against Jewelry or Diamond)
Microfinance and Motorcycle Financing.

commercial loan products
Cash Secured Loan
Revolving Credit Line
Medium & Long-term Facilities for small, 
medium & large industries
Receivables Financing
Bills Purchased Line for small, medium & large 
enterprises

In greater detail, the following are Robinsons Banks' products and services that are all 
ready to secure and promote our individual and corporate clients' financial growth:

treasury and trust products
Peso Denominated Government Securities and 
Other Debt Instruments
Sale and Purchase of US Dollar Currency
Unit Investment Trust Funds
Investment Management Account
Personal and Corporate Trust
Employee Benefit Trust
Escrow
Custodianship and Mortgage Trust Indenture

other products
branch banking products/services
ATM services, Safety Deposit Box, Bank Settle-
ment Services, Remote Statement Services
cash management services
Cash Web, Payroll services (with or without 
E-wallet), Deposit pick-up services
bills payment services
Via ATM, Over-the-counter, Cardless Banking, 
Phone Banking
remittance services 
Via western union remittance
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ROBINSONS BANK CORPORATION (ROBINSONS BANK)
was upgraded to a commercial bank in May 2011, 
a development that boosted the bank’s capacity to 
compete more vigorously by offering a wider array of 
financial products and services to its clientele.

The increased lending business and trading gains 
resulted in a 27 percent rise in the bank’s net income 
of PhP384.4 million last year compared to PhP303.5 
million as restated in 2010. 

The grant of a commercial banking license enabled 
Robinsons Bank to offer more services, including 
foreign letters of credit and other trade instruments 
as well as the most innovative and technology -driven 
financial products and services.

These new offerings are in addition to the 
traditional foreign currency deposit accounts for 
major currencies, savings and current accounts, trust 
investments, securities to retail customers, home and 
auto loans and personal and micro lending products.

The increased lending business, both in the 
commercial and consumer markets, and intensive 
marketing programs boosted the bank’s net interest 
income to PhP1.170 billion in 2011.

JG Summit Holdings Inc. in 2010 bought 
controlling interest in the Royal Bank of Scotland 
and renamed this Robinsons Bank Corporation. 
Then upon approval from the Bangko Sentral ng 
Pilipinas and Securities an Exchange Commission 
in May 2011, the newly-acquired bank merged with 
another Gokongwei-owned bank, Robinsons Saving 
Bank – with the surviving entity (Robinsons Bank 
Corporation) in a commercial bank status.

The bank is looking to become one of the country’s 
top commercial banks. It aims to further boost its 
consumer loan portfolio as well as push and promote 
Internet banking, cash management services and 
mobile banking channels. It plans to add nine more 
branches this year, bringing its network to 69. It will 
also add 28 automated teller machines this year to its 
current 115 units.

In 2011, the bank’s loans grew 26 percent to 
PhP13.2 billion from 2010. Commercial loans 
accounted for 66 percent of total loan mix, while 
consumer loans made up the balance. Deposits 
reached PhP25.2 billion, up 36 percent from the year 
before. Non-interest income hit PhP545 million, 
pushed up by revenue from securities trading.

Operating expenses, meanwhile, grew by 14 
percent to PhP1.1 billion, brought about by network 
expansion, investments in information technology 
and manpower to position the bank for further 
growth. 

Its non-performing loan ratio—the ratio of bad 
loans to total loans—stood at 3.36 percent, while 
capital adequacy ratio—a measure of a bank’s 
financial strength—was at 28.28 percent, with Tier 1 
ratio at 29.13 percent.

As of end-December, the bank’s total assets 
totalled PhP31.5 billion, ranking 28th largest among 
the country’s universal and commercial banks in 2011.

Robinsons Bank 
Gets KB Status, 
Net Income Up 27%

BANKING SERVICES: NEWS
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CORE
INVESTMENTS

PLDT is the leading 
telecommunications provider 
in the Philippines through 
its three major business 
segments – wireless, fixed 
line and information and 
communications technology. 
PLDT offers a wide range of 
telecommunications services 
across the country through 
its most extensive fiber optic 
backbone and wireless, fixed 
line, broadband and satellite 
networks.

Philippine Long 
Distance Telephone 
Company (PLDT)

JG Summit is one of the largest individual 
shareholders in United Industrial Corporation 
Limited (UIC), a Singapore listed company, which 
develops and invests property including commercial 
office, commercial retail and residential properties. 
It is the major real estate developer in Singapore. 
Property investments in China (Beijing, Chengdu, 
Tianjin and Shanghai) and information technology 
service are the other business interests of UIC.

United Industrial 
Corporation Limited 
(UIC)
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GBF 2011 Projects Focus on Pre-School, College
The Gokongwei Brothers Foundation (GBF) launched three major projects in 2011.
Covering the pre-school and college levels, these projects are centered on uplifting 
the socio-economic condition of Filipinos through education.

GBF Grants Multi-million Endowment to DLSU

To further strengthen the field of engineering in our country, GBF gave a significant 
endowment to the De La Salle University (DLSU), which led to the establishment of 
the Gokongwei College of Engineering. 

“The DLSU Gokongwei College of Engineering is special to the family because we 
strongly feel that technology and innovation play a huge role in the modernization 
and advancement of any nation,” said GBF Treasurer Lance Gokongwei. “We believe 
that engineers are required for technologically-adept forward thinking. And this 
knowledge in engineering gives the country the capital needed to build strong manu-
facturing sectors that will lead to greater employment.”

“This is not merely a sharing of resources; it is a partnership that challenges indi-
viduals, particularly in the field of engineering, to work with passion and compassion. 
It is a partnership that seeks innovative solutions to technology, and it is a partnership 
that pushes us to further explore our research capabilities so that we can take on the 
challenges of the global community,” said DLSU President  Br. Narciso Erguiza, Jr 
FSC.

DLSU’s College of Engineering, established in 1947, is recognized as one of the best 
learning institutions in the country, having developed the country’s first ever solar-
powered car in 2007.

CORPORATE 
SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY
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GBF Builds Schoolhouses

GBF partnered with the Aklat, Gabay, Aruga tungo 
sa Pag-Angat at Pag-Asa (AGAPP) Foundation, which 
is focused on building pre-schools in underprivileged 
public school compounds. GBF committed to donate 
18 schoolhouses within 2011.

AGAPP Foundation worked with the Depart-
ment of Education and the local government units 
in selecting the schools that would benefit most 
from the program. The GBF donations financed 
the construction of the schoolhouses, instruc-
tion materials and school supplies, and teacher 
training, a critical part of the AGAPP program. 
“We do not just build the structure, we train the 
teachers as well and send them to at least two 
AGAPP-conducted workshops on modern methods 
of Early Childhood Education. That way we ensure 
that the benefits of the program are far reaching 
and effective,” says AGAPP Executive Director Gel 
Caguioa. 

Scholarship for Excellence

GBF launched the Scholarship for Excellence 
program that granted 50 scholarships to bright 
and deserving young leaders. Only applicants who 
belonged to the top 10 percent of their high school 
batch were accepted.  GBF offered the program to 
graduates of public high schools who would like 
to pursue the following engineering courses: Civil, 
Mechanical, Chemical, Electrical, and Electronics & 
Communications.  For this, GBF partnered with top 
Engineering schools around the country. 

In addition, GBF  granted another 40 scholarships 
to the dependents of JG Summit employees for any 
college degree in their chosen college or university.

GBF General Manager Lisa Gokongwei and GBF Treasurer Lance 
Gokongwei with AGAPP President Pinky Aquino-Abellada.

DLSU President Br. Narciso Enriquez Jr. with John Gokongwei, Jr., James Go and GBF General Manager Lisa Gokongwei
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John L. Gokongwei, Jr.

chairman emeritus and 
founder

James L. Go

chairman and 
chief executive officer

Lance Y. Gokongwei

president and 
chief operating officer

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Robina Y. Gokongwei-Pe
director

Lily G. Ngo-Chua
director

Gabriel C. Singson
director

Patrick Henry C. Go
director

Johnson Robert G. Go, Jr.
director

Jose T. Pardo
director

Cornelio T. Peralta
director

Ricardo J. Romulo
director
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Board of Advisors

Washington Z. SyCip
founder
the sgv group 
sycip, gorres, velayo & co.

Aloysius B. Colayco
country chairman
jardine matheson group-philippines

Jimmy T. Tang
president and chairman of the board 
avesco group of companies
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Heads of Subsidiaries

Universal Robina 
Corporation

Patrick O. Ng
branded consumer 
foods group -
international

Vincent Henry C. Go
agro-industrial group

Ellison Dean C. Lee
flour division

Renato P. Cabati
sugar division

Cornelio S. Mapa, Jr.
branded consumer 
foods group -
philippines
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Robinsons Land 
Corporation

Frederick D. Go

JG Summit 
Petrochemical 
Corporation

Patrick Henry C. Go

Robinsons Bank 
Corporation

Reynold Y. Gerongay

Heads of Subsidiaries

Adviser

Garry R. Kingshott

Cebu Air, Inc.
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JGSH 
Executive 
Officers
James L. Go
chairman and chief executive officer

Lance Y. Gokongwei
president and chief operating officer

Eugenie ML Villena*
senior vice president and treasurer

Constante T. Santos
senior vice president

Bach Johann M. Sebastian
senior vice president

Nicasio I. Lim
senior vice president

Aldrich T. Javellana**
vice president and treasurer

Rosalinda F. Rivera
corporate secretary

Chona R. Ferrer
assistant treasurer

*retired as of december 31, 2011
** effective january 2, 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
JG Summit Holdings, Inc.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 

audit opinion.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
6760 Ayala Avenue
1226 Makati City, Philippines

Phone: (632) 891 0307
Fax: (632) 819 0872
www.sgv.com.ph

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001,
January 25, 2010, valid until December 31, 2012

SEC Accreditation No. 0012-FR-2 (Group A),
February 4, 2010, valid until February 3, 2013
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Opinion

accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Vicky B. Lee-Salas
Partner
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JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
2011

ASSETS
Current Assets

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities

13,622,011,230

Total Current Liabilities 
Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities
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December 31
2011

Equity
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company:

Paid-up capital 

Total Equity

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2011

REVENUE
Sale of goods and services:

Foods
Air transportation
Real estate and hotels
Petrochemicals

COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

GROSS INCOME
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 
INCOME FROM CONTINUING 

OPERATIONS
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Years Ended December 31
2011

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 

NET INCOME
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, 
NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Parent Company

Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations

Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations
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Years Ended December 31
2011

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Equity holders of the Parent Company
Comprehensive income from continuing 

operations
Comprehensive income from discontinued

operations

Comprehensive income from continuing 
operations

Comprehensive income from discontinued 
operations

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Equity 
Holders of the Parent Company

Basic/diluted earnings per share
Earnings Per Share Attributable to Equity 

Holders of the Parent Company from 
continuing operations

Basic/diluted earnings per share
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES

operations

Deferred subscriber acquisition and 

Financial assets at fair value through 

Equity in net income of associates and 

Inventory obsolescence and market 

Provision for impairment losses on 

Receivables
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Other assets

Impairment loss on available-for-sale 

value less estimated costs to sell of 

Financial assets at fair value through 

Investment in an associate
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment

as held-for-sale
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Years Ended December 31
2011

Dividends on cumulative redeemable

Gain on initial recognition of investment 
properties

Operating income before changes in 
working capital accounts

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Derivative assets
Financial assets at fair value through 

Receivables
Inventories
Biological assets
Other current assets

Other current liabilities

Interest paid
Interest received

Dividends received

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES

Acquisitions of:

Available-for-sale investments
Held-to-maturity investments

Subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 

Proceeds from sale of:
Available-for-sale investments
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Investment in an associate 

held for sale

noncurrent assets
Return of investment from an associate 

Dividends received on investments in 
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Years Ended December 31
2011

Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, net 

Proceeds from maturity of held-to-maturity 
investments

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of:
Short-term debt
Long-term debt –

Settlements of:
Short-term debt
Long-term debt 

Proceeds from sale of interest in 
Cebu Air, Inc.

Proceeds from issue of common shares 

Proceeds from issue of preferred shares 

Redemption of cumulative redeemable 
preferred shares

Increase in other noncurrent liabilities

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Dividends paid on:

Cumulative redeemable preferred share

activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JG SUMMIT HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

ADB Avenue corner Poveda Road, Pasig City.

business interests in branded consumer foods, agro-industrial and commodity food products, real 

The Group conducts business throughout the Philippines, but primarily in and around Metro Manila 

Singapore.

Segment Information, to the 

2.

Basis of Preparation

and agricultural produce that have been measured at fair value less estimated costs to sell.

stated.
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A summary of the functional currencies of certain foreign subsidiaries within the Group are as follows:

Subsidiaries
Country of

Incorporation
Functional
Currency

Parent Company
JG Summit Cayman Limited Cayman Islands Philippine Peso
JG Summit Philippines, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

JG Summit Philippines, Ltd. -do- -do-
JGSH Philippines Ltd. British Virgin 

Islands -do-
Multinational Finance Group, Ltd. -do- -do-
Telegraph Development, Ltd. Singapore -do-
Summit Top Investment, Ltd. -do- -do-

URC Group
Cayman Islands -do-

URC Philippines, Limited British Virgin 
Islands -do-

URC China Commercial Co. Ltd. China Chinese Renminbi
Thailand Thai Baht

Siam Pattanasin Co., Ltd. -do- -do-
Singapore Singapore Dollar

PT URC Indonesia Indonesia Indonesian Rupiah
URC Vietnam Co., Ltd. Vietnam Vietnam Dong
URC Hanoi Company Limited -do- -do-
Ricellent Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Malaysian Ringgit

-do- -do-
URC Hong Kong Company Limited Hong Kong HK Dollar

China Chinese Renminbi
Shanghai Peggy Foods Co., Ltd. -do- -do-
Panyu Peggy Foods Co., Ltd. -do- -do-

and Subsidiary Singapore Singapore Dollar
Advanson International Pte. Ltd. -do- -do-
Jiangsu Acesfood Industrial Co. China Chinese Renminbi

Subsidiaries Singapore Singapore Dollar
Shantou SEZ Shanfu Foods Co., Ltd. China Chinese Renminbi

Singapore Singapore Dollar
Acesfood Holdings Pte. Ltd. -do- -do-
Acesfood Distributors Pte. Ltd. -do- -do-

Statement of Compliance
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Basis of Consolidation

Effective Percentage of Ownership
Country of December 31

Subsidiaries Incorporation 2011
Food
URC and Subsidiaries Philippines*
Air Transportation

-do- 100.00
-do- 67.23

British 
Virgin Islands 100.00

Telecommunications
Digital Telecommunications Phils., Inc.

Philippines
Real Estate and Hotels

Subsidiaries -do-
Petrochemicals

-do- 100.00
-do- 100.00

Banking
Robinsons Savings Bank

-do-
-do- 60.00

Supplementary Businesses
-do- 100.00
-do- 100.00

and Subsidiaries -do- 100.00
JG Summit Capital Markets Corporation 

-do- 100.00
Summit Point Services Ltd. -do- 100.00
Summit Internet Investments, Inc. -do- 100.00

Cayman Islands 100.00

and Subsidiaries -do- 100.00
JGSH Philippines Ltd. British

Virgin Islands 100.00
Multinational Finance Group, Ltd. -do- 100.00
Telegraph Development, Ltd. Singapore 100.00
Summit Top Investment, Ltd. British 

Virgin Islands 100.00
-do- 100.00

Unicon Insurance Brokers Corporation Philippines 100.00
Batangas Agro-Industrial Development 

-do- 100.00
Fruits of the East, Inc. -do- 100.00
Hometel Integrated Management 

Corporation -do- 100.00
King Leader Philippines, Inc. -do- 100.00
Samar Commodities Trading and Industrial 

Corporation -do- 100.00
Tropical Aqua Resources -do- 100.00
United Philippines Oil Trading, Inc. -do- 100.00
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Effective Percentage of Ownership
Country of December 31

Subsidiaries Incorporation 2011
Philippines

-do-
-do-

Adia Development and Management 
-do-

-do-
-do-
-do-
-do-

Westpoint Industrial Mills Corporation 
-do-

*  Certain subsidiaries are located in other countries, such as China, Malaysia, Singapore, Thailand, Vietnam, etc.

, prescribes 

consolidated when the substance of the relationship between a certain company and the SPE indicates 

interest.  SLL, CALL, ILL, BLL, SALL and VALL acquired the passenger aircrafts for lease to CAI 

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Parent 
Company obtains control and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.  

when control is transferred out of the Parent Company.

accounting policies used in line with those used by the Group.
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choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.  Subsequent to acquisition, 
non-controlling interests consist of the amount attributed to such interests at initial recognition and the 

as equity transactions.  Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are 

attributed to the Group.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

income.

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, it 

statements with the same accounting period with that of the Parent Company and the difference is not 
more than three months.

Subsidiaries Fiscal Year
Food
URC and Subsidiaries
Real Estate and Hotels
RLC and Subsidiaries -do-
Petrochemicals
JGSPC -do-
JGSOC -do-
Textiles
LMI* -do-
Supplementary Business
JGCC* -do-
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Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.  The cost of an acquisition is 

income as incurred. 

Where appropriate, the cost of acquisition includes any asset or liability resulting from a contingent 
consideration arrangement, measured at its acquisition-date fair value.  Subsequent changes in such 

an asset or liability are accounted for in accordance with relevant PFRSs.  Changes in the fair value of 

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in 
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for the accounting 

of that date.  The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the Group 

comprehensive income.  Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that 

consolidated statement of comprehensive income, where such treatment would be appropriate if that 
interest were disposed of. 

Goodwill

transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the 

purchase gain.
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On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the 

In comparison to the above-mentioned requirements, the following differences applied:

Business combinations were accounted for using the purchase method.  Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs. The non-controlling interest 

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for as separate steps.  Any additional 
acquired share of interest did not affect previously recognised goodwill. 

When the Group acquired a business, embedded derivatives separated from the host contract by the 
acquiree were not reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination resulted in a change in 

required under the contract. 

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and only if, the Group had a present obligation, the 

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

Group has adopted the following new and amended PFRS, PAS and Philippine Interpretation of the 

symmetrical view of related party relationships and clarify the circumstances in which persons 
and key management personnel affect related party relationships of an entity.  In addition, the 

Improvements to PFRS, an omnibus of amendments to standards, deal primarily with a view of 
removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording.  The adoption of the following amendments resulted 

the Group.

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
The amendment was intended to simplify the disclosures provided by reducing the volume of 
disclosures around collateral held and improving disclosures by requiring qualitative information 
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Presentation of Financial Statements

The issuance of and amendments to the following standards and interpretations which became effective 

Financial Instruments: Presentation 
Customer Loyalty Programmes

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Interim Financial Statements

Foreign Currency Translation

currency.

Transactions and balances

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the closing 

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

determined.

As of reporting date, the assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries, with functional currencies other 
than the functional currency of the Parent Company, are translated into the presentation currency of 
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disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular 

income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash represents cash on hand and in banks.  Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less 

Recognition of Financial Instruments
Date of recognition

investments, AFS investments, loans and receivables, or as derivatives designated as a hedging 

recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date.

available, the price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of the current fair value as long as 

using appropriate valuation techniques.  Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, 

other relevant valuation models.

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value based on other 
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose 

variables used are made of data which is not observable, the difference between the transaction price 
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selling and repurchasing in the near term.

hedging instruments in an effective hedge.

Financial assets or liabilities may be designated by management on initial recognition as at FVPL when 
any of the following criteria are met:

are managed and their performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a 

separately recorded.

other operating income according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to receive payment has 
been established.

The Parent Company and certain subsidiaries are counterparties to derivative contracts, such as interest 
rate swaps, currency forwards, cross currency swaps, currency options and commodity options.  These 

contract is entered into or bifurcated and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.  Any gains or losses 

value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

methodologies and quotes obtained from third parties.

hedge provided certain criteria are met.
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Hedge accounting
At the inception of a hedging relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge 

instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will 

designated.

in other comprehensive income.  Any gain or loss in fair value relating to an ineffective portion is 

To qualify for hedge accounting, the Group requires that at the inception of the hedge and throughout 

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed.  
The method that the Group adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will depend on its risk management 
strategy.

the hedge is designated.  The Group applies the dollar-offset method using hypothetical derivatives in 
performing hedge effectiveness testing.  For actual effectiveness to be achieved, the changes in fair 

Embedded derivatives are bifurcated from their host contracts, when the following conditions are met: 
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The Group assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from the host contracts 

would otherwise be required.

currency-denominated derivatives in purchase orders and certain network and service agreements.  

or noncurrent or separated into a current and noncurrent portion based on an assessment of the facts and 

item.

separated into a current portion and a noncurrent portion only if a reliable allocation can be made.

account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective 

calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an 
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AFS investments are those nonderivative investments which are designated as such or do not qualify to 

market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS investments are subsequently measured at fair value.  The effective yield 
component of AFS debt securities, as well as the impact of restatement on foreign currency-denominated 

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

income.  Interest earned on holding AFS investments are reported as interest income using the effective 
interest method.  Where the Group holds more than one investment in the same security, these are 

receive payment has been established.  

elements are accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned with the residual 
amount, after deducting from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair 
value of the liability component on the date of issue.

premium on the issue and fees and debt issue costs that are an integral part of the EIR.  Any effects 

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Debt Issuance Cost

costs are included in the measurement of  the related carrying value of the loan in the consolidated 

income.

Deposits from lessees

method.

Deposits from real estate buyers
Deposits from real estate buyers represent mainly reservation fees and advance payments.  These 

conditions are met:

there is a rare circumstance.

The Group evaluates its AFS investments whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term 

asset accordingly. 

income over the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest method.  Any difference 

of the asset using the effective interest method.  If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, 

income. 
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accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount, after deducting 
from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the liability 
component on the date of issue.

Impairment of Financial Assets

assets that can be reliably estimated.  Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower 

and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash 

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

associated allowance account, is written-off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.  Assets that are 

are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 

The Group performs a regular review of the age and status of these accounts, designed to identify 

loss.  

impairment, the cumulative loss, which is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and 

loss in the consolidated statement comprehensive income, is removed from other comprehensive income 

comprehensive income.

or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.  If, in a subsequent year, the fair value 

income.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial assets

neither transferred nor retained the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred the control of 
the asset.
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through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards 

continuing involvement in the asset.  Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over 

amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

liability simultaneously.

Inventories

of the carrying value of slow-moving items and nonmoving items for more than one year.  Cost is 
determined using the weighted average method.

or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period the write-down or loss 
was incurred.  The amount of reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in the 

was incurred.

of a self-constructed property, plant or equipment.  Inventories allocated to another asset in this way are 

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as 
follows:

Cost is determined using the weighted average method.  Finished goods and work-in-process include 
direct materials and labor and a proportion of manufacturing overhead costs based on actual goods 
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Cost includes costs incurred for development and improvement of the properties and borrowing costs on 

Assets Held for Sale

recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.  For this to be the 

are usual and customary for sales of such assets, and its sale must be highly probable. 

For the sale to be highly probable, the appropriate level of management must be committed to a plan to 
sell the asset and an active program to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated.  
Furthermore, the asset must be actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its 

operations are separated from the results of those that would be recovered principally through 

discontinued operations.

disposal group as held for sale are no longer met, the Group ceases to classify the disposal group as held 
for sale.

accordance with applicable standards.

Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.  

Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of properties that are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or 

are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.  Land is carried at cost 
less impairment loss, if any.  Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction 

transaction is measured at the fair value of the asset acquired unless the fair value of such an asset 
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cannot be measured, in which case the investment property acquired is measured at the carrying amount 

dacion 
en pago

Land improvements
Buildings and improvements

disposal.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced 
by the end of owner occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another party.  Transfers 
are made from investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by 
commencement of owner occupation or commencement of development with a view to sale.

For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property or to inventories, the deemed cost 
of the property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use.  If the property 
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group 

up to the date of change in use.  

Construction in-progress is stated at cost.  This includes cost of construction and other direct costs.  

during the construction period.  Construction in-progress is not depreciated until such time as the 
relevant assets are completed and put into operational use.

Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

entity in which each venturer has an interest.
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share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the other comprehensive income in the 

ventures.

policies used in line with those used by the Group.

investment at its fair value.  Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss 

comprehensive income.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties, 

equipment installed/constructed on leased properties or leased aircraft.

incurred.

equipment are available for use, and are computed using the straight-line method over the EUL of the 
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The EUL of property, plant and equipment of the Group follow:

EUL
Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Telecommunications equipment:

Tower
Switch
Outside plant facilities
Distribution dropwires
Cellular facilities and others

Investment in cable systems
Leasehold improvements
Passenger aircraft*

Transportation, furnishing and other equipment

the time the change was determined necessary.

Construction in-progress is stated at cost.  This includes cost of construction and other direct costs.  
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction of property, plant and equipment 

time as the relevant assets are completed and put into operational use.  Assets under construction are 

related activities necessary to prepare the properties for their intended use are completed and the 
properties are available for use.

and can be used only in connection with an item of property, plant and equipment are accounted for as 
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The Group is legally required under various lease contracts to restore certain leased properties and 
leased aircraft to their original conditions and to bear the cost of any dismantling and deinstallation 
at the end of the contract period.  These costs are accrued based on an internal estimate made by the 

on a straight-line basis over the EUL of the related account or the lease term, whichever is shorter, or 

Borrowing Costs

substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the asset for sale or its intended use are complete.  

Biological Assets

Biological assets are measured on initial recognition and at each reporting date at its fair value less costs 

the time of harvest.

The Group is unable to measure fair values reliably for its poultry livestock breeders in the absence of: 

depreciation and impairment loss, if any.  However, once the fair values become reliably measurable, the 
Group measures these biological assets at their fair values less estimated costs to sell.
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processes cease.  A gain or loss arising on initial recognition of agricultural produce at fair value less 

the period in which it arises.  The agricultural produce in swine livestock is the suckling that transforms 

hatched chick and table eggs.

The cost of a biological asset comprises its purchase price and any costs attributable in bringing the 
biological asset to its location and conditions intended by management.

assets.  The EUL of biological assets ranges from two to three years.

The carrying values of biological assets at cost are reviewed for impairment, when events or changes 

Swine livestock are measured at their fair values less costs to sell.  The fair values are determined 
based on current market prices of livestock of similar age, breed and genetic merit.  Costs to sell include 

transport and other costs necessary to get the biological assets to the market.

A gain or loss on initial recognition of a biological asset carried at fair value less estimated costs to sell 

in which it arises.

Goodwill
Goodwill acquired in a business combination from the acquisition date is allocated to each of the 

synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned 
to those units or groups of units.  

Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated:
represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal 

Operating Segments.

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost, less any accumulated impairment loss.  
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances 
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Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is 
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of 
the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.  Goodwill disposed of in 
this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion 
of the cash-generating unit retained.

Bank Licenses
Bank licenses arose from the acquisition of branches of a local bank by the Group and commercial bank 

impairment testing.

Intangible Assets

The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the acquisition 
date.  Following initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost less any accumulated 

lives are assessed for impairment, whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may be 
impaired.

prospective basis.

A gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between 
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Technology
Licenses Licenses

Product 
Formulation Software Costs Trademarks

EUL

 method used on a 
straight-line 

basis over the 
EUL of the 

license

on a 
straight-line 

basis over the 
EUL of the 

software cost

on a 
straight-line 

basis over the 
EUL of the 
trademark

Internally 
generated or 
acquired

Acquired Acquired Acquired Acquired Acquired Acquired

Deferred Subscriber Acquisition and Retention Costs
Subscriber acquisition costs primarily include handset and phonekit subsidies.  Handset and phonekit 

R
are in the form of free handsets.

Subscriber acquisition and retention costs pertaining to postpaid subscriptions are deferred and 

statement of comprehensive income.

after deduction of direct costs associated with the service contract over the base contract period.  Costs 

direct costs.

This accounting policy applies to Telecommunication Segment of the Group which was disposed in 

asset is required, the Group makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount.  Recoverable amount is 

independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is 
assessed as part of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs.  Where the carrying amount of an asset 
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impaired and is written-down to its recoverable amount.  In assessing value in use, the estimated future 

deferred subscriber acquisition and retention costs, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to 

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 

its remaining useful life.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

reversed in future periods.

The Group performs its impairment test of goodwill every reporting date.

case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount 

The carrying values of biological assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable.

individually or at the cash-generating unit level, as appropriate.
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Common Stock

costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of 

Treasury Shares
Treasury shares are recorded at cost and are presented as a deduction from equity.  When the shares 

Revenue and Cost Recognition 

and the revenue can be reliably measured.  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 

Sale of goods

ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.  
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of any trade 
discounts, prompt payment discounts and volume rebates.

Revenue derived from tolling activities, whereby raw sugar from traders and planters is converted into 

terms and conditions of the ticket and historical trends.

comprehensive income.

services are carried out.

principally on the basis of the estimated completion by reference to the actual costs incurred to date over 
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If any of the criteria under the percentage of completion method is not met, the deposit method is applied 
until all the conditions for recording a sale are met.  Pending recognition of sale, cash received from 

Interest income

instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.

change in carrying amount is recorded as interest income.

method and is shown as a deduction from loans.

The Group earns fees and commission income from the diverse range of services it provides to its 
customers.  Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period.  

collection or accrued when there is reasonable degree of certainty as to its collection.

Represent results arising from disposal of AFS investments and trading activities including all gains and 

The Group leases certain commercial real estate properties to third parties under an operating lease 

term, or based on a certain percentage of the gross revenue of the tenants, as provided under the terms of 
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services.

process and the collectibility of the sales price is reasonably assured.

Revenue from telecommunications services includes the value of all telecommunications services 

and interconnection and settlement agreements.

Revenue is stated at amounts billed or invoiced and accrued to subscribers or other carriers and content 

settlement system.

allocation, less bonus airtime credits, airtime on free SIM, prepaid reload discounts and interconnection 

carriers owning the network where the outgoing voice call or SMS terminates and payout to content 

period on a pro-rata basis.  Telecommunications services provided to postpaid subscribers are billed 
throughout the month according to the billing cycles of subscribers.  As a result of billing cycle cut-off, 
service revenue earned but not yet billed at end of month is estimated and accrued based on actual 
usage.

Interconnection fees and charges arising from the actual usage of prepaid cards are recorded as incurred.

Proceeds from sale of phonekits and SIM cards/packs received from certain mobile subscribers 

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

charges are based on agreed transit and termination rates with other foreign and local carriers and 
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and settlements to providers for contents downloaded by subscribers.  Both the inbound revenue and 

are determined and are mutually agreed-upon by the parties.  Uncollected inbound revenue is shown 

position.

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Provisions

current best estimate.  If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by 

Related Party Relationships and Transactions

which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or between, and/or among the reporting 
enterprise and its key management personnel, directors, or its shareholders.  In considering each possible 
related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the 
legal form.

Contingencies

Pension Costs

services rendered by employees up to the date of valuation and incorporates assumptions concerning 

any curtailments or settlements.
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and past service costs.  The value of any asset is restricted to the sum of any past service cost not yet 

of comprehensive income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the employees 

future contributions to the plan.

amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted as of reporting date.

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 

controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.  
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recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time 

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, 

enacted or substantively enacted as of reporting date.

underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the 

A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

a.
b.

c.
d. there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the 
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios a, c or d above, and at the date of 
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leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments and is included 

shorter of the EUL of the assets or the respective lease terms, if there is no reasonable certainty that the 
Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income for the period attributable to the ordinary equity holders 
of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year, 

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net income attributable to ordinary equity holders of 

average number of common shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of 
common shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential common shares into 
common shares.

Dividends on Common Shares

by the BOD of the Parent Company in the case of cash dividends, and the BOD and shareholders of the 
Parent Company in the case of stock dividends.

Segment Reporting

products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers 
different products and serves different markets.  Financial information on operating segments is 

Subsequent Events
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Future Changes in Accounting Policies

The Group will adopt the standards and interpretations enumerated below when these become effective.  

 should be determined 
on the basis that its carrying amount will be recovered through sale.  Furthermore, it introduces 

, always be measured on a sale basis of the asset.  

Separate Financial Statements
Consolidated Financial Statements Disclosure 

, and describes the application of the equity 
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These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off and related 

amendments require entities to disclose, in a tabular format unless another format is more 
appropriate, the following minimum quantitative information.  This is presented separately for 

a.
b.

c.
d.

i.

ii.
e.

Consolidated Financial Statements 

and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that were 

- Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers

associates and structured entities.  A number of new disclosures are also required.  This standard 

Fair Value Measurement 
The standard establishes a single source of guidance under PFRS for all fair value measurements.  
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on how to measure fair value under PFRS when fair value is required or permitted.  The Group is 

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine 
This interpretation applies to waste removal costs that are incurred in surface mining activity 

recognition of production stripping costs as an asset and measurement of the stripping activity asset.  

comprehensive picture.

 is issued by 

and guidance in the standard vis-à-vis the practices and regulations in the Philippine real estate 
industry is completed.  This Philippine Interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated 

Construction Contracts
on stage of completion.  Contracts involving provision of services with the construction materials 
and where the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a continuous basis will 
also be accounted for based on stage of completion. 

The adoption of this Philippine Interpretation will be accounted for retrospectively and will result to 
the restateme
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3.

will cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change.  The effects of any change in 

circumstances.

Judgments

a.

foreseeable future.  Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may 

b.

in an active market is the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly available, 

length basis.

investments to maturity.  If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity other than in 

investments.  Consequently, the investments would therefore be measured at fair value and not at 

c.

liabilities would affect the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
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internal valuation techniques using generally accepted market valuation models.  The inputs to these 
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimates 

inputs such as correlation and volatility for longer dated derivatives.

d.
Selecting an appropriate revenue recognition method for a particular real estate sale transaction 

The related balances from real estate transactions follow:

2011
Revenue

e.

rewards of ownership of the leased assets are transferred to the Group.  Lease contracts, which 
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the leased 

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio.  Based 
on the evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, the Group has determined that it 

not provide for an option to purchase or transfer ownership of the property at the end of the lease 

Group accounted for the lease agreements as operating leases. 

f.

operations of the Group, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held primarily to 

are attributable not only to the property but also to the other assets used in the production or supply 
process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another 
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative 
purposes.  If these portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted for as an investment 

services or for administrative purposes.  Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary 
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g.
The Group periodically undertakes transactions that may involve obtaining the right to control or 

of aircraft and assumption of certain liabilities.  Also included are transactions involving SPEs 
and similar vehicles.  In all such cases, management makes an assessment as to whether the Group 

consolidated as a subsidiary or an associated company.  In making this assessment, management 
considers the underlying economic substance of the transaction and not only the contractual terms.

h. Determination of functional currency
, requires management to use its 

economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions that are relevant to the entity.  

a.

b.
c. the currency in which receipts from operating activities are usually retained.

to, the foreign operation on behalf of the Parent Company or whether its functions are essentially an 

or indeed it is undertaking activities on its own account.  In the former case, the functional currency 

currency of the entity would be assessed separately.

i.

consolidated reporting date of the Parent Company since management of the Group assessed that 

technical information.
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conditions at the reporting date:

The entity is to be genuinely sold, not abandoned.

l. Contingencies
The Group is currently involved in certain legal proceedings.  The estimate of the probable costs 
for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with outside counsel handling 
the defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential results.  The Group currently 

position.  It is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by 
changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these proceedings  

Estimates
The key assumptions concerning the future and other sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 

a.

the reported amounts of revenue and costs.

Sale of real estate

completion and the completion rate is measured principally on the basis of the estimated 
completion by reference to the actual costs incurred to date over the estimated total costs of the 

The related balances from real estate transactions follow:

2011
Revenue

Rendering of transportation services

would be reported based on other reasonable assumptions or conditions suggested by actual 
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based on the terms and conditions of the tickets and historical trends.

Rendering of telecommunications services

over the subscription period on a pro-rata basis.  Digitel bills the postpaid subscribers 
throughout the month according to the bill cycles of subscribers.  As a result of the billing 
cycle cut-off, service revenue earned but not yet billed at the end of the month is estimated and 
accrued based on actual usage. 

periods.

b.

in the fair value in other comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income.  When the fair value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline in value 

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

equity securities.  In addition, the Group evaluates other factors, including the normal volatility 
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equities.

c.
The Group maintains allowances for impairment losses on trade and other receivables at a level 
considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables.  The level of this allowance is 
evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts.  These 

payment behavior and known market factors.  The Group reviews the age and status of the 

The Group provides full allowance for trade and other receivables that it deems uncollectible.

d.

moving inventories by reference to prevailing values of the same inventories in the market.

e.
The Group is legally required under various contracts to restore certain leased property and leased 
aircraft to its original condition and to bear the costs of dismantling and deinstallation at the end 
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of the contract period.  These costs are accrued based on an internal estimate which incorporates 
estimates on the amounts of asset retirement costs, third party margins and interest rates.  The 

and equipment accounts, and depreciates such on a straight-line basis over the EUL of the related 
asset.

The present value of dismantling or restoration costs of telecommunication segment is computed 

Assumptions used to compute ARO are reviewed and updated annually.

statements.

f.

The Group estimates the useful lives of its depreciable property, plant and equipment, investment 

physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence on the use of these assets.  It is 
possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates 
brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above.  A reduction in the EUL of the depreciable 
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible assets would increase 

g.
The fair values of swine are determined based on current market prices of livestock of similar age, 
breed and genetic merit.  Costs to sell include commissions to brokers and dealers, nonrefundable 

previous estimates due to changes brought by both physical change and price changes in the market.  
It is possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these 
estimates brought about by the changes in factors mentioned.

h.

the selection of certain assumptions used in calculating such amounts.  Those assumptions include, 
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periods.

i.

The Group assesses impairment on its property, plant and equipment, investment properties, 

intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of 
an asset may not be recoverable.  The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger 
an impairment review include the following:

recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.  The 
fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions 

the asset base of the cash-generating unit being tested.  The recoverable amount is most sensitive to 

asset may be impaired.  This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units 
to which the goodwill is allocated.  Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an 
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2011

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

directly from its operations.  Also, the Parent Company and certain subsidiaries are counterparties to 
derivative contracts, such as interest rate swaps, currency forwards, cross currency swaps, currency 
options and commodity options.  These derivatives are entered into as a means of reducing or managing 

The BODs of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries review and approve the policies for managing 

Risk Management Structure
The BOD of the Parent Company and the respective BODs of each subsidiary are ultimately responsible 
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assessment of business risks, development of risk management strategies, design and implementation 
of risk management capabilities and appropriate responses, monitoring risks and risk management 

process.

monitoring of risks.

purpose to lead in the general evaluation and to provide assistance in the continuous improvements of 
risk management, control and governance processes.

The AC also aims to ensure that:

a.

b.

c.

d.
management and control systems.

a.
b.
c.
d. development of a risk awareness program.

the provisions and requirements of good corporate governance, identifying and monitoring control 
compliance risks, determining violations, and recommending penalties for such infringements for 

At the business unit or company level, the day-to-day risk management functions are handled by four 
different groups, namely:

Risk-taking Personnel.  This group includes line personnel who initiate and are directly accountable 
for all risks taken.
Risk Control and Compliance.  This group includes middle management personnel who perform the 
day-to-day compliance check to approved risk policies and risk mitigation decisions.
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risk-mitigating decisions within the enterprise-wide risk management framework.

management framework and is accountable for risks taken by the Parent Company.  The Parent 

enterprise-wide.

The ERM framework revolves around the following eight interrelated risk management approaches:

business unit to determine how risks are viewed and addressed by management.  This is presented 
during the strategic planning, annual budgeting and mid-year performance reviews of the Group.

annual targets through strategic planning activities, in order to ensure that management has a 

distinguishing between risks and opportunities.

potential loss which serves as a basis for determining how the risks should be managed.  The 
risks are further assessed as to which risks are controllable and uncontrollable, risks that require 

implemented to ensure that the risk responses are effectively carried out enterprise-wide.

captured and communicated in form and substance that enable all personnel to perform their risk 
management roles.

constantly monitor the management of risks through risk limits, audit reviews, compliance checks, 
revalidation of risk strategies and performance reviews.

activities of the Parent Company and the other business units:

of risks. 

CORPSAT administers enterprise-wide procurement policies to ensure availability of supplies and 
services of high quality and standards to all business units.

wide policies and procedures.

planning, budgeting and performance review processes of business units.

insurance program of business units concerning property, public liability, business interruption, 

performance bonds.
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Risk Management Policies

risk, such as, foreign currency risk, commodity price risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk.  The 

manage credit risk.

to the carrying amount of these instruments.  

The Group has a counterparty credit risk management policy which allocates investment limits based on 

a.

2011

Gross
Maximum
Exposure

Fair Value of
Collateral or

Credit
Enhancement

Net
Exposure

Financial Effect
of Collateral or

Credit
Enhancement

Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents*
Trade receivables
Finance receivables:

Commercial
Real estate
Consumption

Other receivables

�
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Gross
Fair Value of
Collateral or

Credit
Enhancement

Financial Effect
of Collateral or

Credit
Enhancement

Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents*
Trade receivables
Finance receivables:

Commercial
Real estate
Consumption

Other receivables

�

Collateral and other credit enhancements
The Group holds collateral in the form of cash bonds, real estate and chattel mortgages and 
government securities.  The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment 
of credit risk.  Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and 

fashion.  In general, the proceeds are used to reduce or repay the outstanding claim, and are not 
occupied for business use.

b.

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or 
activities in the same geographic region or have similar economic features that would cause their 
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political 

to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.  Such credit risk 

credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.



102

i. Concentration by geographical location

follows:

December 31, 2011

Philippines

Asia 
(excluding United 

States Europe Others* Total
Cash and cash 

equivalents**
Financial assets at FVPL:

Held-for-trading:
Debt securities:

Private
Government – –

Equity securities:
Quoted –
Unquoted – – – –

–

Derivative assets:

accounting
hedges – –

AFS investments:
Debt securities:

Government – –
Private

Equity securities:
Quoted 110,367,200 – –
Unquoted – – – –

110,367,200 – –

Receivables:
Trade receivables
Finance receivables – – – –
Due from related 

parties – – –
Interest receivable
Other receivables – –

123,023,160
Refundable security 

consolidated statement 
– – –

in the consolidated 

– – – –

�
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Philippines

Asia 
United 
States Europe Others* Total

Cash and cash equivalents**
Financial assets at FVPL:

Held-for-trading:
Debt securities:

Private
Government – –

Equity securities:
Quoted
Unquoted – – – –

Derivative assets:

accounting hedges – –

AFS investments:
Debt securities:

Government – –
Private

Equity securities:
Quoted – –
Unquoted – – – –

– –

Receivables:
Trade receivables –
Finance receivables – – – –
Due from related parties – –
Interest receivable
Other receivables –

Refundable security deposits 

consolidated statement of 
– – –

consolidated statement of 
– – – –

�
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c.

impairment losses:

2011
Neither Past Due Nor Impaired Past Due
High 

Grade
Standard 

Grade
Substandard

Grade Unrated
or Individually 

Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents*
Financial assets at FVPL:

Held-for-trading:
Debt securities:

Private –
Government – – – –

–
Equity securities:

Quoted – –
Unquoted – – – –

–
–

hedges – – –
–

AFS investments:
Debt securities:

Government – – –
Private 102,000,000 – –

102,000,000 – –
Equity securities:

Quoted – – –
Unquoted – – – –

– –
– –

Receivables:
Trade receivables –
Finance receivables
Due from related parties – – –
Interest receivable – –
Other receivables –

Refundable security deposits

in the consolidated statement of 
– –

– – –

�
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Past Due
High 

Grade
Standard 

Grade
Substandard 

Grade Unrated
or Individually

Impaired Total

Cash and cash equivalents*
Financial assets at FVPL:

Held-for-trading:
Debt securities:

Private – –
Government – – – –

– –
Equity securities:

Quoted – –
Unquoted – – –

–
–

hedges – – –
–

AFS investments:
Debt securities:

Government – –
Private

Equity securities:
Quoted – – –
Unquoted – – –

– –

Receivables:
Trade receivables –
Finance receivables –
Due from related parties – – –
Interest receivable – –
Other receivables –

–
Refundable security deposits

in the consolidated statement of 
– –

– – – –

�
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High grade cash and cash equivalents are short-term placements and working cash fund placed, 

Other high grade accounts are considered to be of high value since the counterparties have a remote 

Standard grade accounts are active accounts with minimal to regular instances of payment default, 
due to ordinary/common collection issues.  These accounts are typically not impaired as the 
counterparties generally respond to credit actions and update their payments accordingly.

Substandard grade accounts are accounts which have probability of impairment based on historical 
trend.  These accounts show propensity to default in payment despite regular follow-up actions and 

and real estate loans.

Grades Categories Description
High grade

highly unlikely to be adversely affected by 
foreseeable events. 

Super Prime

events.
Prime

be more vulnerable to adverse business/
economic conditions.

Very Good
more than adequate capacity for payment 

business/economic conditions are more 
likely to impair this capacity

Good

business/economic changes
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Grades Categories Description
Standard

Satisfactory Material probability of default is present, 

commitments are currently being met 
although the capacity for continued 
payment is vulnerable to deterioration in 
the business/economic condition.

Average Greater probability of default which is 

unfavorable economic period would create 
deterioration beyond acceptable levels.

Standard
Fair

default, although borrowers should still be 

any prolonged unfavorable economic/
market  conditions would create an 

beyond acceptable levels.
Sub-standard grade

Marginal Elevated level of probability of default, 

adequate to marginal.
Watchlist

Special mention Loans have potential weaknesses that 

reached a point where there is a real risk 

interest and repay the principal timely 

condition.
Substandard Substantial and unreasonable degree of risk 

to the institution because of unfavorable 

Impaired
Doubtful Weaknesses similar to “Substandard”, 

but with added characteristics that make 
liquidation highly improbable.

Loss Uncollectible or worthless.
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industry outlook, documentation, security and term.

d. Aging analysis of receivables by class

 2011

Neither Past
Due Nor

Impaired

Past Due But Not Impaired Past
Due and 

Impaired
Less than 

30 Days
30 to 60 

Days Days Days Total
Trade receivables
Finance 

receivables 32,316,013
Due from related

parties – – – – –
Interest receivable – – – –
Others

Impaired

Past
Due and 
Impaired

Less than 
Days Days Days Total

Trade receivables
Finance 

receivables
Due from related

parties – – – – –
Interest receivable – – – –
Others

Liquidity risk is the risk of not being able to meet funding obligations such as the repayment of liabilities 

unanticipated events created by customer behavior or capital market conditions.  The Group maintains 

raising activities may include obtaining bank loans and capital market issues both onshore and offshore.
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2011

On Demand
Up to 3 
Months

3 to 12 
 Months Years

More Than
Total

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at FVPL:

Held-for-trading:
Debt securities:

Private –
Government – –

–
Equity securities:

Quoted –
Unquoted – – – –

–

assets:

accounting hedges – –

AFS investments:
Debt securities:

Government –
Private –

–
Equity securities:

Quoted 21,720,000 –
Unquoted – – –

–

Receivables:
Trade receivables
Finance receivables
Due from related parties – – – –
Interest receivable – – –
Other receivables

Refundable security 
deposits –

consolidated statement 
– – –
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 2011

On Demand
Up to 3 
Months

3 to 12
Months

More than 1 More Than
Total

Accounts payable and accrued 

noncurrent portion booked 

Short-term debt – 32,730,137 – –

consolidated statements of 
–

consolidated statement of 
– –

Deposits from real estate buyers 

in the consolidated statement 
–

consolidated statement of 
– – –

–

Off-balance sheet
Commitments*

On Demand Months Months
More Than

Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at FVPL:

Held-for-trading:
Debt securities:

Private – –
Government –

Equity securities:
Quoted – –
Unquoted – – – –

– –

accounting hedges – –
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On Demand Months Months
More Than

Total
AFS investments:

Debt securities:
Government
Private –

–
Equity securities:

Quoted – –
Unquoted – – –

–
–

Receivables:
Trade receivables
Finance receivables
Due from related parties – –
Interest receivable – –
Other receivables

Refundable security deposits

– – –

Accounts payable and accrued 

noncurrent portion 

the consolidated statement 

Short-term debt – – – –

consolidated statements of 
–

Due to related parties 

payable and accrued 

the consolidated statement 
– –

Deposits from real estate 
buyers and lessees 

consolidated statement of 
–

portion booked under 

consolidated statement of 
– –

–

Off-balance sheet
Commitments*
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instrument as a result of changes in its price, in turn caused by changes in interest rates, foreign 

2011

US Dollar
Other

Currencies* Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at FVPL
AFS investments
Receivables
Derivative assets
Other noncurrent assets –

Liabilities

Short-term debt
Derivative liability –

–
Other noncurrent liabilities –

Liabilities
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US Dollar
Other 

Currencies* Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at FVPL
AFS investments
Receivables
Derivative assets –
Other current assets –
Other noncurrent assets

Liabilities

Short-term debt
Derivative liability –

–
Other noncurrent liabilities –

Liabilities

2011

US$1.00

The following table sets forth the impact of the range of reasonably possible changes in the  

2011
Reasonably Possible Changes in 

US Dollar-Philippine Peso 
Exchange Rates

Change in 
Income Before 

Income Tax
Change in 

Equity
(

Reasonably Possible Changes in 
US Dollar-Philippine Peso 

Change in
Income Before Change in

Equity
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Reasonably Possible Changes in 
US Dollar-Philippine Peso 

Change in
Income Before Change in

Equity

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of 
equity indices and the value of individual stocks.  

to a reasonably possible change in equity indices, with all other variables held constant, will increase 
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The following table sets forth the impact of the range of reasonably possible changes in the interest rates 

Change in 
Income Before Income Tax

Reasonably Possible Changes in 
Interest Rates 2011

(

of the related market indices of the FVPL and AFS investments using a sensitivity approach.

2011
Reasonably Possible

Changes in  
Market Prices

Change in 
Income Before 

Income Tax Change in Equity
FVPL (

AFS

accounting hedges*

* 

Reasonably Possible
Changes in  

Market Prices

Change in
Income Before

Change in Equity

Designated as accounting 
hedges* –

–
FVPL –

–
AFS –

–

accounting hedges* –

* 



120

Reasonably Possible
Changes in  

Market Prices

Change in
Income Before

Change in Equity

Designated as accounting 
hedges* –

–
FVPL –

–
AFS –

–

accounting hedges* –

* 

The Group enters into commodity derivatives to manage its price risks on fuel purchases.  Commodity 

the economic hedge cover, the price changes on the commodity derivative positions are offset by higher 

assuming no change in volume of fuel is consumed.

The Group manages its commodity price risk through fuel surcharges which are approved by the 

operated.

rates and prices.  Market risk is present in both trading and non-trading activities.  These are the risk 

The risk arises from market-making, dealing and position-taking in quoted debt securities and foreign 

normal market environment, with a given probability of occurrence.  

RBC uses the historical simulation method in estimating VaR.  The historical simulation method is a 

distribution assumption.  VaR is estimated directly from historical date without deriving parameters or 
making assumptions about the entire data distribution.

RBC updates its dataset on a daily basis.  Per RBC policy, VaR is based on a one day holding period and 
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Discussed below are the limitations and assumptions applied by RBC on its VaR methodology:

a. VaR is a statistical estimate and thus, does not give the precise amount of loss RBC may incur in the 

b. VaR is not designed to give the probability of bank failure, but only attempts to quantify losses that 

c. Since VaR is computed from end-of-day positions and market factors, VaR does not capture intraday 

d. VaR systems depend on historical data.  It attempts to forecast likely future losses using past data.  
As such, this assumes that past relationships will continue to hold in the future.  Therefore, market 

e. The limitation relating to the pattern of historical returns being indicative of future returns is 

backtesting.

the VaR methodology, assumptions and parameters did not change.  The enhanced VaR model was 

June 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011
Average High Low December 31

Instruments sensitive to local 
interest rates

Instruments sensitive to 
foreign interest rates 0.11 0.00 0.00

Instruments sensitive to 
0.01

January 1, 2011 to May 31, 2011
Average High Low May 31

Instruments sensitive to local 
interest rates

Instruments sensitive to 
foreign interest rates

Average High Low
Instruments sensitive to local 

interest rates
Instruments sensitive to 

foreign interest rates
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and deposits, assesses investment opportunities and reviews the structure of assets and liabilities.  

interest rates and liquidity position, as well as prepare cash position reports as needed to measure the 
liquidity and reserves position of RBC.  

RBC also uses the repricing gap report.  The repricing gap report is a tool used by RBC for measuring 
market risk arising from non-trading portfolios.  Although available contractual repricing dates are 

could decline if interest rates increase upon repricing.  Although such gaps are a normal part of the 

The table below demonstrates the sensitivity of net interest income to reasonably possible changes in 
interest rates:

2011

Change
in basis

points

Net interest
income 

estimated
effect 

Change
in basis

points

Net interest
income 

estimated
effect 

Change
in basis

points

Net interest
income 

estimated
effect 

PhP +100
-100

USD +100
-100 6.07

Change
in basis

points

income 
estimated

effect 
Change
in basis

points

income 
estimated

effect 
Change
in basis

points

income 
estimated

effect 

PhP

USD
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In addition, the table below demonstrates the sensitivity of equity to reasonably possible changes in 
interest rates. 

2011

Change
in basis

points

Equity
estimated
effect (in

Change
in basis

points

Equity
estimated
effect (in

Change
in basis

points

Equity
estimated
effect (in

PhP +100
-100 632.36

USD +100
-100 102.01

Change
in basis

points

Equity
estimated Change

in basis
points

Equity
estimated Change

in basis
points

Equity
estimated

PhP

USD

denominated loan and investment portfolio in the FCDU.  Banks are required by the BSP to match the 
foreign currency liabilities with the foreign currency assets held in the FCDU.  In addition, the BSP 

methodology for measuring foreign currency risk. 

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

instruments.

incremental lending rates for similar types of loans.  Where the instruments are repriced on a quarterly 
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Debt securities
Fair values of debt securities are generally based on quoted market prices.

Fair values are based on quoted prices published in markets.

lack of suitable methods of arriving at a reliable fair value. These are carried at cost.

Carrying amounts of due from and due to related parties which are collectible/payable on demand 

repayments.

Deposit liabilities

borrowing rates for similar borrowings with maturities consistent with those remaining for the liabilities 
being valued.

Noninterest-bearing refundable security deposits

Long-term debt

The fair values of the interest rate swaps and commodity options are determined based on the quotes 

account the remaining term-to-maturity of the forwards.  The fair values of cross currency swaps are 

of embedded prepayment option are estimated based on prices derived using the binomial pricing 
methodology.
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2011
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:

Trade receivables
Finance receivables
Other receivables

Refundable security deposits 

373,731,733

Financial Liabilities

cost:

in the consolidated 

Deposits from real estate 

consolidated statements of 

Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments 

those whose fair value is based on:

that are not based on observable market data. 
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December 31, 2011
Level 1 Level 2 Total

Financial Assets
Financial assets at FVPL:

Held-for-trading:
Debt securities:

Private
Government –

Equity securities:
Quoted –

hedges –

AFS investments:
Debt securities:

Government –
Private –

–
Equity securities:

Quoted –
–

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVPL:

hedges



127

Total
Financial Assets
Financial assets at FVPL:

Held-for-trading:
Debt securities:

Private
Government –

–
Equity securities:

Quoted –
–

hedges –

AFS investments:
Debt securities:

Government –
Private –

–
Equity securities:

Quoted –
–

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVPL:

hedges
Designated as accounting hedges –

Segment Information

Operating Segments

products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers 
different products and serves different markets.

The industry segments where the Group operates are as follow:

Foods, agro-industrial and commodities businesses - manufacturing of snack foods, granulated 

manufacturing and distribution of animal feeds, corn products and vegetable oil and the synthesis of 

Air transportation - air transport services, both domestic and international, for passengers and 
cargoes.
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Real estate and hotels - ownership, development, leasing and management of shopping malls 

residential subdivisions and sale of subdivision lots and residential houses and the provision of 

chemicals.

dealing and fund transfers or remittance servicing.
Telecommunications - service provider of voice and data telecommunications services which include 

and securities dealing.

Management monitors the operating results of each segment.  The measure presented to manage segment 

are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.  Transfer pricing between 
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Intersegment Revenues
Intersegment revenues are eliminated at the consolidation level.

Segment Results

of the Parent Company while EBITDA is computed by adding back to the EBIT the depreciation and 

Segment Assets

Segment Liabilities

balances which, are eliminated.  The Group also reports, separately, to the chief operating decision 
maker the breakdown of the short-term and long-term debt of each of the operating segments.

acquisitions of investment property and property, plant and equipment during the period.

Geographical Information
The Group operates in the Philippines, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia, China, Hong Kong, Singapore 
and Vietnam.

geographical market, regardless of where the goods were produced:

2011
Domestic
Foreign

the Group.

2011
Domestic
Foreign
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2011
Cash on hand
Cash in banks
Cash equivalents

Cash in bank earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates.  Cash equivalents represent money 
market placements made for varying periods depending on the immediate cash requirements of the 
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risk management purposes.  Also included under this heading are any derivatives which do not meet 

Interest rate swaps

interest in Digitel.

Commodity options

derivatives are not designated as accounting hedges.  The gains or losses on these instruments are 
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Foreign currency forwards

short-term forwards have varying tenors ranging from one to three months and have a total notional 

Currency options
The Group entered into currency options that are all due within one year from respective reporting 

respectively.

Currency swaps

Embedded forwards
The Group has derivatives embedded in some of its contracts.  Such derivatives pertain to embedded 
currency forwards noted in purchase, sales and service contracts, denominated in a currency 
which is not the functional currency of a substantial party to the contract or routine currency of the 
transaction for the contracts.  The total outstanding notional amount of currency forwards embedded 

entire ownership interest in Digitel.

As part of its asset and liability management, the Group uses derivatives, particularly interest rate swaps, 
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Hedge 
, varies according to the nature of the hedged item and compliance with the hedge criteria.  

Hedges entered into by the Group which provide economic hedges but do not meet the hedge accounting 
criteria are included under derivatives not designated as accounting hedges.

Interest rate swaps

Hedge Effectiveness Results

The distinction of the results of hedge accounting into “Effective” or “Ineffective” represent designations 

2011
Balance at beginning of year

taken to other comprehensive 
income

–

Balance at end of year
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2011
Balance at beginning of year:

Derivative assets
Derivative liabilities

Continuing operations

other comprehensive income
Fair value of settled instruments
Effect of disposal of a subsidiary

Balance at end of year:
Derivative assets
Derivative liabilities

Th

These investments that are held for trading consist of:

2011
Debt securities:

Private
Government

Equity securities:
Quoted
Unquoted

2011
Debt securities:

Private
Government
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amendments to be issued by the IASB, and the adoption of these amendments permitted the Group to 

September 30, 
2011*

Private bonds
Government securities
Equity securities

determined based on weighted average rates by business.

2011

Interest income

Provision for impairment losses – –
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Available-for-Sale Investments

This account consists of investments in:

2011
Debt securities:

Government
Private

Equity securities:
Quoted
Unquoted

2011
Current portion

2011
Debt securities:

Government
Private
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 2011

Parent Company
Non-controlling

Interests Total
Balance at beginning of year

comprehensive income 

Fair value changes during the 
period on AFS investments of 
the Parent Company and its 
subsidiaries

investments of an associate 
–

Balance at end of year

Parent Company Interests Total
Balance at beginning of year

comprehensive income 

Fair value changes during the 
period on AFS investments of 
the Parent Company and its 
subsidiaries

investments of an associate 
–

Balance at end of year
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Parent Company Interests Total
Balance at beginning of year

comprehensive income 

Fair value changes during the 
period on AFS investments 
of the Parent Company and 
its subsidiaries

for losses determined to be 
permanent decline included 

AFS investments of an 
–

Balance at end of year

Receivables

This account consists of:

2011
Finance receivables
Trade receivables

Interest receivable
Other receivables

Less allowance for impairment losses

2011
Current portion

2011
Trade receivables
Finance receivables
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Trade Receivables
Included in trade receivables are installment contract receivables of the real estate segment of the 

Finance Receivables

2011
Receivables from customers:

Commercial
Real estate
Consumption
Domestic bills purchased

Less unearned interest and discounts

Restructured receivables which do not meet the requirements to be treated as performing receivables 

2011
Receivables from customers:

Commercial
Consumption
Real estate
Domestic bills purchased

Unquoted debt securities
Sales contract receivable –
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Others

Allowance for Impairment Losses on Receivables
Changes in the allowance for impairment losses on receivables follow:

December 31, 2011
Individual Assessment Collective Assessment

Trade 
Receivables

Finance 
Receivables

Other
Receivables

Trade 
Receivables

Finance 
Receivables Total

Balance at beginning
of year

Provision for impairment 
losses

Accounts written-off –
Effect of disposal of a 

– –
Balance at end of year

Individual Assessment Collective Assessment
Trade 

Receivables
Finance

Receivables
Other 

Receivables
Trade 

Receivables
Finance

Receivables Total
Balance at beginning 

of year
Beginning balance 

of the acquired 
– – –

Provision for 
impairment losses

Accounts written-off –
Effect of changes in 

foreign currency rates – – – –
Balance at end of year

Breakdown of provision for impairment losses on receivables follows:

2011
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Inventories

This account consists of inventories held as follows: 

2011
At cost:

Raw materials
Finished goods

Subdivision land, condominium and 
residential units for sale

Spare parts, packaging materials and 
other supplies

Work-in-process
By-products

Materials in-transit

the trusteed inventories or their sales proceeds.

2011
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Other Current Assets

This account consists of:

2011

Advances to suppliers

Utility deposits
Restricted cash in bank
Others

Funds under Escrow

SPA, the funds will be released to the Parent Company if certain conditions on working capital and net 

Input VAT

This includes: 

2011
Prepaid rent
Prepaid insurance
Prepaid advertising

Restricted Cash in Bank
Restricted cash pertains to cash in bank being held as collateral by the counterparty in relation to the 

derivative on the date of valuation.
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Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

This account consists of:

2011
Acquisition cost:

Balance at beginning of year
Additional investments
Effect of disposal of a subsidiary –
Return of investment from an associate
Balance at end of year

Accumulated equity in net earnings:
Balance at beginning of year
Equity in net earnings
Effect of disposal of a subsidiary –
Cash dividends received
Balance at end of year

-
ments of an associate:
Balance at beginning of year
Share in net changes in fair value of AFS 

investments of an associate
Balance at end of year

Less allowance for impairment losses

ownership are shown below:

Percentage of Ownership
2011 2011

Associates
Foreign:

Domestic:
20.00

– –
Bauang Private Power Corporation

–

Joint Ventures
Domestic:

131.7

– –
– – –
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Investment in UICL 
UICL follows the revaluation method of measuring investment properties while the Group follows 

assets.

Financial information of UICL follows:

2011
Current assets

Current liabilities 37,311,631,376

Revenue
Cost of sales

Investment in OPMC 
The Group accounts for its investment in OPMC as an associate although the Group holds less than 

have a fair value of: 

2011
UICL
OPMC

Investment in CLIPI

2011
Statement of Financial Position Statement of Comprehensive Income

Associate
Current

Assets
Noncurrent

Assets
Current

Liabilities
Noncurrent

Liabilities Revenue
Costs and
Expenses Net Income

OPMC
CLIPI
JPI

Statement of Financial Position Statement of Comprehensive Income

Associate
Current
Assets Assets

Current
Liabilities Liabilities Revenue

Costs and

OPMC
CLIPI
BPPC
JPI
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Investment in FPPC/BPPC 

its assets and liabilities at their carrying values to BPPC.  

Pursuant to the Articles of Merger, BPPC issued common stock to holders of FPPC common stock 
upon the surrender and cancellation of the common stock of FPPC.  The merger was accounted for in 

Investment in Joint Ventures

the facilities and services at airports in the Philippines, as well as aircraft maintenance and repair 

provide training for pilots, cabin crews, aviation management services and guest services for purposes 

DC

of its entire ownership interest in Digitel.

2011
Statement of Financial Position Statement of Comprehensive Income

Joint  
Venture

Current
Assets

Noncurrent
Assets

Current
Liabilities

Noncurrent
Liabilities Revenue

Costs and
Expenses

Net Income

APPC
HURC
SIAEP
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Statement of Financial Position Statement of Comprehensive Income
Joint 
Venture

Current
Assets Assets

Current
Liabilities Liabilities Revenue

Costs and

APPC
HURC
SIAEP
DC

Investment Properties

Movements in this account follow:

2011
Land 

and Land
Improvements

Buildings and 
Improvements

Construction 
In-Progress Total

Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Retirement/disposals –

Balance at end of year
Accumulated Depreciation

and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year –

–
Retirements/disposals –

–
Balance at end of year –
Allowance for Impairment Losses

– –
Net Book Value at End of Year

Land 
and Land

Improvements
Buildings and
Improvements

Construction 
In-Progress Total

Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Retirement/disposals

Balance at end of year
Accumulated Depreciation

and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year

Retirements/disposals
Balance at end of year
Net Book Value at End of Year

Investment properties consist mainly of land held for appreciation, shopping malls and commercial 

properties are in prime locations across the Philippines.
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Borrowing Costs

Fair Value of Investment Properties
The fair value of investment properties, which has been determined based on valuations performed 

The fair value of the investment properties was arrived at using the .  In this 
approach, the fair value of the investment properties is based on sales and listings of comparable 
property registered in the vicinity.  The technique of this approach requires the establishment of 
comparable property by reducing reasonable comparative sales and listings to a common denominator.  

listings regarded as comparable.  The properties used as a basis for comparison are situated within the 

Rent Income from Investment Properties

respectively.

2011

included under:

Collaterals

collateral.



155

Pr
op

er
ty

, P
la

nt
 a

nd
Eq

ui
pm

en
t

Th
e 

co
m

po
sit

io
n 

of
 a

nd
 m

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 th

is
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fo

llo
w

:

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

1
L

an
d 

an
d

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

M
ac

hi
ne

ry
 a

nd
 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

Te
le

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
 C

ab
le

 S
ys

te
m

s
Su

b-
to

ta
l

C
os

t
B

al
an

ce
 a

t b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r
A

dd
iti

on
s

–

–
–

B
al

an
ce

 a
t e

nd
 o

f y
ea

r
–

–
A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

an
d 

A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n
B

al
an

ce
 a

t b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r

–
–

B
al

an
ce

 a
t e

nd
 o

f y
ea

r
–

–
A

llo
w

an
ce

 fo
r 

im
pa

ir
m

en
t l

os
se

s
–

–
–

–
N

et
 B

oo
k 

Va
lu

e 
at

 E
nd

 o
f Y

ea
r

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

1
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n,

 
Fu

rn
is

hi
ng

 a
nd

 
O

th
er

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

Pa
ss

en
ge

r A
ir

cr
af

t
an

d 
O

th
er

 F
lig

ht
 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

-p
ro

gr
es

s
E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
In

-tr
an

si
t

To
ta

l
C

os
t

B
al

an
ce

 a
t b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r

A
dd

iti
on

s
–

–

B
al

an
ce

 a
t e

nd
 o

f y
ea

r
A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

an
d 

A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n
B

al
an

ce
 a

t b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

B
al

an
ce

 a
t e

nd
 o

f y
ea

r
–

–
A

llo
w

an
ce

 fo
r 

im
pa

ir
m

en
t l

os
se

s
–

–
–

–
N

et
 B

oo
k 

Va
lu

e 
at

 E
nd

 o
f Y

ea
r



156

La
nd

 a
nd

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
M

ac
hi

ne
ry

 a
nd

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
Te

le
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
Eq

ui
pm

en
t

In
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
C

ab
le

 S
ys

te
m

s
Su

b-
to

ta
l

C
os

t
B

al
an

ce
 a

t b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r
A

dd
iti

on
s

B
al

an
ce

 a
t e

nd
 o

f y
ea

r
A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

an
d 

A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n
B

al
an

ce
 a

t b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r

B
al

an
ce

 a
t e

nd
 o

f y
ea

r
N

et
 B

oo
k 

Va
lu

e 
at

 E
nd

 o
f Y

ea
r

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n,
Fu

rn
is

hi
ng

 a
nd

 
O

th
er

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

Pa
ss

en
ge

r A
irc

ra
ft

an
d 

O
th

er
 F

lig
ht

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
-p

ro
gr

es
s

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
In

-tr
an

si
t

To
ta

l
C

os
t

B
al

an
ce

 a
t b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r

A
dd

iti
on

s

B
al

an
ce

 a
t e

nd
 o

f y
ea

r
A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

an
d 

A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n
B

al
an

ce
 a

t b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r

B
al

an
ce

 a
t e

nd
 o

f y
ea

r
N

et
 B

oo
k 

Va
lu

e 
at

 E
nd

 o
f Y

ea
r



157

Construction in-Progress
DTPI

including a generator set, base station and subsystems may be found in a typical infrastructure.  These 

including its ability to inter-operate with other network elements, thereby ensuring seamless inter-

necessary to prepare the asset for their intended use are completed, and the asset are ready for 
commercial service.

ownership interest in Digitel.

buildings and improvements and other ground property under construction.  Construction in-progress 
is not depreciated until such time when the relevant assets are completed and available for use.  As of 

the production primarily of polymer grade ethylene, polymer grade propylene, partially hydrogenated 
pyrolysis gasoline and pyrolysis fuel oil.

Borrowing Costs

follows:

2011
Continuing operations:
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Investment in Cable Systems

entire ownership interest in Digitel.

Property, Plant and Equipment Pledged as Collateral

Under the terms of the ECA loans and the commercial loan facilities, upon the event of default, the 

SLL or SALL or VALL, or by the guarantors which are CPAHI and the Parent Company.  Failure to pay 
the obligation will allow the respective lenders to foreclose the securing assets.

Others

Operating Fleet

2011

10

11
37
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Biological Assets

The composition and movements in this account follow:

December 31, 2011
Swine (At Fair Value Less

Breeder Commercial Sub-total Breeder Commercial Sub-total Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions –
Disposal
Balance at end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year – –
Depreciation – – – –
Disposal – –
Balance at end of year – –

from changes in fair value 
less estimated costs to sell – – –

Net Book Value at  
End of Year

Breeder Commercial Sub-total Breeder Commercial Sub-total Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Disposal
Balance at end of year
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year – –
Depreciation – –
Disposal – –
Balance at end of year – –
Losses arising from changes 

in fair value less 
estimated costs to sell – – –

Net Book Value at  
End of Year

respectively.

2011
Current portion
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Intangible Assets

The composition and movements in this account follow:

2011
Technology 

Licenses Licenses
Software 

Costs Trademarks
Product 

Formulation Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions – – – –
Balance at end of year
Accumulated 

Amortization and 
Impairment Loss

Balance at beginning of year – –
– – –

Balance at end of year – –
Impairment Losses Due to 

Disposal of Investment 
in Subsidiaries

– – – –
Net Book Value at 

End of Year –

Technology 
Licenses Licenses

Software 
Costs Trademarks

Product 
Formulation Total

Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions – –
Balance at end of year
Accumulated 

Amortization and 
Impairment Loss

Balance at beginning of year – –
– – –

Balance at end of year – –
Net Book Value at 

End of Year

Technology Licenses

Licenses

Trademarks and Product Formulation
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Goodwill

2011
Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Disposal of investment –
Balance at end of year
Accumulated Impairment Losses
Balance at beginning of year

–
Balance at end of year
Net Book Value at End of Year

goodwill arising from the acquisitions of HCFCL, UABCL, Acesfood and Advanson was translated at 

The Group performed its annual impairment test on its goodwill and other intangible assets with 

use:

subsidiaries.  The prospect for the industry was also considered in estimating the growth rates.

Discount rates - discount rates were estimated based on the industry weighted average cost of capital, 
which includes the cost of equity and debt after considering the gearing ratio.
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Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of:

2011
Security and miscellaneous deposits

Input VAT
Deferred subscriber acquisition and retention costs

Others

Security Deposits

Deferred Subscriber Acquisition and Retention Costs
Changes in deferred subscriber acquisition and retention costs follow:

2011
Balance at beginning of year
Deferral of subscriber acquisition and retention costs

Effect of disposal of a subsidiary
Balance at end of year

Others
Others include repossessed chattels and utility deposits. 
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Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of:

2011
Trade payables

Deposit liabilities

Airport and other related fees payable

Output VAT
Dividends payable
Other payables

Trade Payables

arise mostly from purchases of inventories, which include raw materials and indirect materials  

also include importation charges related to raw materials purchases, as well as occasional acquisitions 
of production equipment and spare parts.  Obligations arising from purchase of inventories necessary 

2011
Landing and take-off, navigational charges,

Accrued interest payable
Advertising and promotions

Import bills payable
Contracted services
Utilities

Freight and handling costs
Insurance
Royalties

other professional services.
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Deposit Liabilities
Deposit liabilities represent the savings, demand and time deposit liabilities of RBC.  Of the total deposit 

The liquidity and statutory reserves of RBC as reported to the BSP are as follows:

2011
Cash and other cash items
Due from BSP

2011
Savings
Time
Demand

Airport and Other Related Fees Payable
Airport and other related fees payable are amounts payable to the Philippine Tourism Authority and Air 

Other Payables
Other payables mostly consists of management bonus and royalty payables.

Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

2011
Unearned revenue
Deposits from real estate buyers

Advances from agents and others
Deposits from lessees
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Unearned Revenue

and over-the-air reload services sold.  Proceeds from sale of prepaid cards and airtime values through 

entire ownership interest in Digitel.

Advances from Agents and Others

agents.

Short-term and Long-term Debt

Short-term Debt
Short-term debt consists of:

2011
Parent Company:

Subsidiaries:
Foreign currencies - with interest rates ranging from 

Philippine Peso - with interest rates ranging from 
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Long-term Debt

Maturities Interest Rates 2011
Parent Company:

Bayerische HypoVereinsbank AG 

Subsidiaries:
Foreign currencies:

JGSPL

loan facility
URCPL

Digitel

Term loan facilities
Various dates 

Zero-coupon convertible bonds
CAI

Various dates 

Commercial loan from foreign 
banks

Various dates 

Philippine Peso:
URC

Philippine Sugar Corporation 
restructured loan

RLC

3,000,000,000

PDST-F rate 2,000,000,000

Less current portion 13,622,011,230
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2011
Due in:

Thereafter

paid-up capital or distribution of assets resulting in capital base impairment.

Parent Company 

Parent Company 

unconditional, unsubordinated, and unsecured obligations of the Parent Company ranking pari passu at 
all time times without preference with all outstanding unsubordinated debt and unsecured obligations 
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segment of the Group.

unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Parent Company.  Unless previously purchased and 

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled, the notes will be redeemed at their principal 

These corporate notes contain negative covenants which include among others maintenance of the 

tenth year after the issue date and are redeemable at the option of Digitel, in whole or in part, at the end 
of each year starting one year after the issue date and every year thereafter at the following redemption 
dates and values:

Redemption Date Redemption Value
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Redemption Date Redemption Value

Alternately, the bondholders will have the right to convert the Digitel bonds into common shares of 
Digitel at redemption date.  The number of conversion shares to be received by the bondholders upon 

the Digitel bonds shall be converted into the common shares of Digitel at the end of the tenth year 

agreement.

Parent Company to amend the conversion options of JGSHI-subscribed Bonds.  On the said MOA, the 
conversion rights provided for in the terms and conditions of the Bonds as contained in the Application 
to Purchase and in the Prospectus, the Parent Company agreed that any conversion of its JGSHI-

The Digitel bonds constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of Digitel 
and shall at all times rank pari passu and without preference among themselves and at least equally with 

by virtue of mandatory provision of law.

MTI.

transaction being among entities under common control has been agreed by the Parent Company, DCPL 
and JGSPL, as an equity transaction.
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Digitel Term Loan Facilities

as follow:

and thereafter, each of them falling due on the following interest payment date.  DMPI shall pay 

Philippines Inc. for the supply of various telecommunications materials, software and services for 
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the starting date for repayment date and thereafter, each of them falling due on the following interest 

regulations.

on the following interest payment date.

contractors.

Pursuant to the aforementioned purchase agreements, DMPI entered into a loan agreement with 

agreements.

annum.

Ltd.  The purchase agreements relate to the supply of equipment, hardware, software, and services 
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per annum calculated on the loan.  The loan is guaranteed by Digitel and the Parent Company.

DMPI for the supply of equipment and services availed by DMPI with Huawei Technologies Co., 

per annum plus LIBOR.  The loan is guaranteed by the Parent Company.

The loan is guaranteed by the Parent Company.

addition, the covering loan agreements of such liabilities contain covenants which, among others, restrict 
the incurrence of loans or debts not in the ordinary course of business, merger or disposition of any 

PLDT assumed the obligations of the Parent Company, as guarantor under the Digitel and DMPI loan 
agreements covered by guarantees from the Parent Company.  Digitel and DMPI obtained the required 

trustee of the commercial loan facility established ILL, which purchased the aircraft from the supplier 

QEC Kit.  The quarterly rental payments of CAI correspond to the principal and interest payments made 
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by ILL to the commercial lenders and are guaranteed by the Parent Company.  CAI has the option of 
purchasing the aircraft, the engines and the QEC Kit for a nominal amount at the end of such leases.

established BLL, a special purpose company, which purchased the aircraft from the supplier and leases 

The terms of the commercial loan from foreign banks follow:

aircraft, and equal principal repayments for the engines and the QEC Kit. Principal repayments shall 

The commercial loan facility provides for material breach as an event of default.
Upon default, the outstanding amount of loan will be payable, including interest accrued. The 
lenders will foreclose on secured assets.

company, which purchased the aircraft from the supplier and leases such aircraft to CAI pursuant to  

to the principal and interest payments made by CALL to the ECA-backed lenders.  The quarterly lease 
rentals to CALL are guaranteed by CPAHI and the Parent Company.  CAI has the option of purchasing 
the aircraft for a nominal amount at the end of such leases.

aircraft.  The security trustee of the ECA loans established BLL, a special purpose company, which 

agreements.  The semi-annual rental payments made by CAI to BLL corresponds to the principal and 
interest payments made by BLL to the ECA-backed lenders.  The semi-annual lease rentals to BLL are 
guaranteed by the Parent Company.  CAI has the option of purchasing the aircraft for a nominal amount 
at the end of such leases.  

The Company pre-terminated the lease agreement with BLL related to the disposal of one  

also pre-terminated.  The proceeds from the insurance claim on the related aircraft were used to settle 
the loan and accrued interest.  The Parent Company was released as guarantor on the related loans.
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aircraft.  The security trustee of the ECA loans established SLL, a special purpose company, which 

agreements.  The semi-annual rental payments made by CAI to SLL corresponds to the principal and 
interest payments made by SLL to the ECA-backed lenders.  The semi-annual lease rentals to SLL are 
guaranteed by the Parent Company.  CAI has the option of purchasing the aircraft for a nominal amount 
at the end of such leases.

aircraft.  The security trustee of the ECA loans established SALL, a special purpose company, which 

agreements.  The quarterly rental payments made by CAI to SALL corresponds to the principal and 
interest payments made by SALL to the ECA-backed lenders.  The quarterly lease rentals to SALL are 
guaranteed by the Parent Company.  CAI has the option to purchase the aircraft for a nominal amount at 
the end of such leases.

aircraft.  The security trustee of the ECA loans established VALL, a special purpose company, which 

agreements.  The quarterly rental payments made by CAI to VALL corresponds to the principal and 
interest payments made by VALL to the ECA-backed lenders.  The quarterly lease rentals to VALL are 
guaranteed by the Parent Company.  CAI has the option to purchase the aircraft for a nominal amount at 
the end of such leases.

As provided under the ECA-backed facility, CALL, BLL, SLL, SALL and VALL cannot create or 

CALL or BLL or SLL or SALL or VALL, CAI, the Parent Company or CPAHI of any transaction 
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with CAI.
Upon default, the outstanding amount of the loan will be payable, including interest accrued.  The 
ECA lenders will foreclose on the secured assets, namely the aircraft.
An event of default under any ECA loan agreement will occur if an event of default as enumerated 
above occurs under any other ECA loan agreement. 

Philippine Peso Loans

surcharges due.

�

The notes contain negative covenants that, among others, prohibit merger or consolidation with other 
entities if it is not the surviving entity, nor shall it create or form another corporation or subsidiary when 

�

unconditional, unsubordinated, general and unsecured obligations of RLC ranking at least pari passu

one tranche.

outstanding balance with payments commencing on the issue date and ending on the maturity date.

Parent Company.



176

�

unconditional, unsubordinated, general and unsecured obligations of RLC ranking at least pari passu

one day from issue date.

the outstanding balance, with payments commencing on the issue date and ending on the maturity date.

Parent Company.

�

unsecured obligations of RLC ranking pari passu in all respects and ratably without any preference 
or priority with all other outstanding unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of RLC.  The bond is 

outstanding balance, with payments commencing on the issue date and ending on the maturity date.  

�

and unsecured obligations of RLC ranking pari passu in all respects and ratably without any preference 
or priority with all other outstanding unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of RLC.  The bonds are 

outstanding balance with payments commencing on the issue date and ending on the maturity date. The 

2011
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Other Noncurrent Liabilities

This account consists of:

2011

Deposits from lessees
Deposit liabilities

Deposits from real estate buyers
Accrued maintenance cost

Others

ARO
The Group is legally required under certain leased property and lease contracts to restore certain 
leased passenger aircraft and leased properties to stipulated return conditions and to bear the costs of 
restoration such as dismantling and deinstallation at the end of the contract period.  These costs are 

includes estimates of certain redelivery costs at the end of the operating lease.

2011
Balance at beginning of year

Payments of restorations during the year –
Effect of disposal of a subsidiary –
Additional provision for the year –
Balance at end of year

Deposits from Lessees 



178

Deposit Liabilities

Deposits from Real Estate Buyers
Deposits from real estate buyers represent cash received from buyers which shall be applied against the 
total contract price of the subdivision land, condominium and residential units that are for sale.  The 
deposits from buyers are normally applied against the total contract price within a year from the date the 
deposits were made.

Accrued Maintenance

of shipped materials and/or delivered services.

Equity

Details of the Group capital stock follow:

2011
Par Value Shares Amount

Common shares 
Preferred voting shares 0.01
Preferred non-voting shares 1.00 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000

Par Value Shares Amount
Common shares 
Preferred non-voting shares
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Details of issued and fully paid, outstanding and acquired shares follow:

2011
Shares Amount Shares Amount

Common shares
Issued and fully paid
Less treasury shares
Total issued and 

outstanding 
Preferred voting

Issued and outstanding

The preferred voting shares have, among others, the following rights, privileges and preferences:
a. Entitled to vote on all matters involving the affairs of the Parent Company requiring the 

approval of the stockholders.  Each share shall have the same voting rights as a common share.
b. The shares shall be non-redeemable.
c.

d. In the event of liquidation, dissolution, receivership or winding up of affairs of the Parent 
Company, holders shall be entitled to be paid in full at par, or ratably, in so far as the assets of 
the Parent Company will permit, for each share held before any distribution is made to holders 
of the commons shares.

The preferences, privileges, and voting powers of the preferred non-voting shares shall be as follows:
a.

series, and purpose or purposes as shall be determined by the BOD of the Parent Company.
b. The shares shall be non-convertible, non-voting, cumulative and non-participating.
c. May be redeemable at the option of the Parent Company at any time, upon payment of their 

aggregate par or issue value, plus all accrued and unpaid dividends, on such terms as the BOD 
of the Parent Company may determine at the time of issuance.  Shares so redeemed may be 
reissued by the Parent Company upon such terms and conditions as the BOD of the Parent 
Company may determine.

d. The holders of shares will have preference over holders of common stock in the payment of 
dividends and in the distribution of corporate assets in the event of dissolution, liquidation or 
winding up of the Parent Company, whether voluntary or involuntary.  In such an event, the 
holders of the shares shall be paid in full or ratably, insofar as the assets of the Parent Company 
will permit, the par or issue value of each share held by them, as the BOD of the Parent 
Company may determine upon their issuance, plus unpaid cumulated dividends up to the current 
period, before any assets of the Parent Company shall be paid or distributed to the holders of the 
common shares.

e. The holders of shares shall be entitled to the payment of current as well as any accrued or unpaid 
dividends on the shares before any dividends can be paid to the holders of common shares.

f. The holders of shares shall not be entitled to any other or further dividends beyond that 

g.

h. The holders of shares shall have no pre-emptive rights, options or any other similar rights 
to subscribe or receive or purchase any or all issues or other disposition of common or other 
preferred shares of the Parent Company.
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i. The shares shall be entitled to receive dividends at a rate or rates to be determined by the Parent 

Treasury shares

Record of Registration of Securities with the SEC

Regulation Code.

Date of 
offering Type of offering offered Par value Offer price shares

Issued and 
outstanding shares

Registration of 

capital stock preferred non-voting 
shares

Initial public 
common shares common shares

Conversion of 
convertible 
bonds into 
common 
shares

common shares common shares

Stock rights 
common shares common shares

The table below provides information regarding the number of stockholders of the Parent Company as of 

2011
Common shares 1,171
Preferred voting shares 1 – –

Capital Management

years.

The Group monitors its use of capital structure using a debt-to-capital ratio which is gross debt divided 
by total capital.  The Group includes within gross debt all interest-bearing loans and borrowings and 
derivative liabilities, while capital represents total equity.  
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2011

Regulatory Capital

revised risk-based capital adequacy framework for the Philippine banking system to conform with  

capital to risk weighted assets, which are computed based on BSP regulations.

reported to BSP, which is determined on the basis of regulatory accounting policies, which differ from 
PFRS in some aspects.  The combined capital accounts of RBC should not be less than an amount equal 

methodological revisions to the calculation of minimum capital that universal banks, commercial banks 

The guidelines for allocating minimum capital to cover market risk was also amended to some 

recommendations.
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2011

–
Gross qualifying capital
Less  required deductions – –
Total qualifying capital
Risk weighted assets

–
Risk-based capital adequacy ratio

direct and indirect, to DOSRI. 

provisions are based on regulatory accounting principle.

requirements.

Restricted Retained Earnings
Parent Company
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trust operations.

for dividend declaration. The accumulated equity in net earnings becomes available for dividends upon 
receipt of cash dividends from the investees.

Cash Dividends
Parent Company

2011
Date of declaration July 7, 2011
Dividend per share
Total dividends
Date of record July 27, 2011
Date of payment August 22, 2011

Date of declaration
Dividend per share
Total dividends
Date of record
Date of payment
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Company:

2011
Date of declaration May 11, 2011
Dividend per share
Total dividends
Date of record May 31, 2011
Date of payment June 27, 2011

2011
Date of declaration May 11, 2011
Dividend per share
Total dividends
Date of record May 31, 2011
Date of payment June 27, 2011

Date of declaration
Dividend per share – regular
Total dividends – regular
Dividend per share – special
Total dividends – special
Date of record
Date of payment

Treasury Shares

Equity Reserve

The Secondary shares that were sold were owned by CPAHI, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent 
Company.

the consolidated statements of comprehensive income in the event that the Group will lose its control 
over CAI.
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Below is the rollfoward of non-controlling interests:

2011
Beginning balance
Total comprehensive income:

non-controlling interests
Other comprehensive income 

attributable to non-controlling 
interests:

investments
Cumulative translation 

Cash dividends paid to non-controlling 
interests

Additional non-controlling interests in 
subsidiaries –

Issuance of capital stock of a 
subsidiary

– –
Effect of disposal of a subsidiary 

– –

outstanding shares.
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controlling interests.

Banking Revenue

This account consists of:

2011

Trading and securities gains
Service fees and commission income

Interest Income 

This account consists of:

2011
Interest income from:

Cash in banks and cash 
equivalents

Installment contract receivables 

Others

Interest income are included in the following accounts in the consolidated statements of comprehensive 
income as follows:

2011
Finance income
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Other Operating Income

This account consists of:

2011
Dividend income

FVPL
Others

sale of PPE.

Cost of Sales and Services

This account consists of:

2011
Raw materials used
Direct labor
Overhead cost
Total manufacturing cost
Work-in-process
Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods
Cost of sales 
Cost of services
Cost of sales and services

Overhead costs are broken down as follow:

2011
Utilities and rental

Repairs and maintenance
Personnel
Rental
Handling and delivery charges
Royalties
Research and development
Others

Cost of services is broken down as follow:

2011
Air transportation
Real estate
Hotel operations
Banking
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General and Administrative Expenses

This account consists of:

2011
Advertising and promotions
Outside services

Aircraft and engine lease
Travel and transportation
Rental

Sales commission
Insurance
Utilities and supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Communication
Entertainment, amusement and 

Others

Others

Personnel Expenses

2011
Salaries and wages

2011
Cost of sales and services
General and administrative 
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Depreciation and Amortization

properties, deferred subscriber acquisition and retention costs, biological assets and intangible assets 
follows:

2011
Continuing operations

Cost of sales and services
General and administrative 

Discontinued operations

Impairment Losses and Others

This account consists of:

2011
Provision for impairment losses on:

Receivables
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Other noncurrent assets 

Inventory obsolescence and market 
decline

Permanent decline in value of AFS 
–

Financing Costs and Other Charges

This account consists of:

2011

Bank charges and others
Dividends on cumulative redeemable 

preferred shares –

2011

Accretion of ARO

Others
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Components of Other Comprehensive Income

2011

period

Disposal of AFS investments
Permanent decline in fair value – –

derivatives taken to other 
comprehensive income

–

investments of an associate 
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2011
Before tax Net of tax

AFS investments of Parent Company 
and its subsidiaries

–
–

investments of an associate 
–

AFS investments of Parent Company 
and its subsidiaries

–
–

investments of an associate 
–

AFS investments of Parent Company 
and its subsidiaries

–
–

investments of an associate 
–
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Pension Plans

employees.  The pension fund are being administered and managed by certain stockholders as trustees.  
URC and RLC, however, reserve the right to discontinue, suspend or change the rates and amounts of 
their contributions at any time on account of business necessity or adverse economic conditions.

2011

follow:

2011

Fair value of plan assets
Unfunded status

Pension liabilities at end of year

2011
Present value of funded obligation
Fair value of plan assets

–
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2011

–
ii. Present value of available reduction in future contributions –
Limit –

Movements in the fair value of plan assets follow:

2011
URC RLC Total

Balance at beginning of year

Actual contributions –

Actuarial gains
Balance at end of year
Actual return on plan assets

URC RLC Total
Balance at beginning of year

Actual contributions –

Balance at end of year
Actual return on plan assets

reporting date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

2011
URC RLC

Amount Amount
Cash – 0.36

100.00 100.00

URC RLC
Amount Amount

Cash
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2011
URC Others* Total

Balance at beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost

Actuarial losses – net
Effect of disposal of a subsidiary –
Balance at end of year

* 

URC Others* Total
Balance at beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost

Actuarial losses – net
Effect of curtailment –
Balance at end of year

* Others inc

2011
URC Others* Total

Current service cost
Interest cost

during the year

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations – – –

* Ot Company and 
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URC Others* Total
Current service cost
Interest cost

during the year

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

* 

URC Others* Total
Current service cost
Interest cost

during the year
Effect of curtailment

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

* 

2011
URC Others* URC Others* URC Others*

Retirement age 60 60
Average remaining 

11 11
Discount rate
Salary rate increase

on plan assets
* 

Amounts for the current annual period and previous four annual periods are as follows:

URC
2011

obligation
Plan assets

Plan assets
Plan liabilities
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Others*
2011

obligation
Plan assets

Plan assets
Plan liabilities

* 

Income Taxes

2011
Corporate
Final
Deferred

, provides that the 

carried forward on an annual basis and credited against the RCIT for the three immediately succeeding 

be claimed as an alternative deduction in computing for the RCIT.  The Parent Company has elected to 
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2011

Allowance for impairment losses on 
receivables and property, plant and 
equipment

Others

2011

ARO liability

Allowance for impairment losses on
receivables and property, plant and 
equipment

MCIT carryforward

Foreign subsidiaries
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 22,200,106

–
Others
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2011

Double depreciation

ARO asset
Undistributed income of foreign subsidiaries
Accrued rent income
Borrowing cost
Gain arising from changes in fair value less 

estimated costs to sell of swine stocks
Foreign subsidiaries

Market valuation gain on derivative instrument
Deferred subscriber acquisition costs –
Others

disposal of its entire ownership interest in Digitel.

2011
Allowance for impairment losses

Accrued pension costs
MCIT
Depreciation of investment properties and 

repossessed chattels
–

–
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2011

others
1.67

Others 

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the year attributable to equity 
holders of the Parent Company divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding 

Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company

2011
Income from continuing operations 

attributable to equity holders of the 
Parent Company

Less: Dividends on preferred shares 3,200,000
Income from continuing operations 

attributable to holders of common 
shares of the Parent Company

Income from discontinued operations 
attributable to equity holders of the  
Parent Company

Income attributable to holders of 
common shares of the Parent 
Company

Weighted average number of 
common shares

Basic/dilutive earnings per share
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Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company from continuing operations

2011
Income from continuing operations 

attributable to equity holders of the 
Parent Company

Less: Dividends on preferred shares 3,200,000
Income from continuing operations 

attributable to holders of common 
shares of the Parent Company

Weighted average number of 
common shares

Basic/dilutive earnings per share

Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other 

individuals or corporate entities.  Transactions between related parties are based on terms similar to 
those offered to non-related parties.

agreed with related parties:

Related Party Relationship Financial Statement Account 2011
JGSCSC Subsidiary Due to related parties Various
RBC -do- Cash and cash equivalents Various

Due from related parties
URC -do- Due from related parties Various
EHI -do- Due from related parties Various
JGSCMC -do- Due to related parties Various
RLC -do- Due from related parties Various
CAI -do- Due from related parties Various

Due to related parties Various
JGSCL -do- Due from related parties Various
DMPI -do- Due from related parties Various
DTPI -do- Due from relatedparties Various

Unquoted debt security Various
JGSPC -do- Due from related parties Various
CPAHI -do- Due from related parties Various
LMI -do- Due to related parties Various
WIMC -do- Due from related parties Various
URC 

Retirement 
Plan Due to related parties Various

Robinsons, Inc. -do- Due from related parties Various
Robinsons 

Supermarket 
Corporation -do- Due from related parties Various
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Related Party Relationship Financial Statement Account 2011
Robinsons  

Holdings, 
Inc. -do- Due from related parties Various

Shrine Galleria 
Corporation -do- Due from related parties Various

Chic Center -do- Due from related parties Various
Gokongwei 

Brothers 
Foundation, 
Inc. -do- Due from related parties Various

OPMC Associate Due from related parties Various
Others Various Due from related parties Various

Various Due to related parties Various

usually receives advances from subsidiaries and in turn, makes advances to other subsidiaries.  Certain 
advances are treated as loans and are charged with interest.  The Group has entered into transactions 
with associates and other related parties principally consisting of sales, purchases, advances and 

agreements.  

Most of the aforementioned intercompany transactions between the Parent Company and its subsidiaries 

Related party transactions which are not eliminated follow:

2011

Due to related parties
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Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.  There have been 
no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.  An impairment 

party and the market in which the related party operates.

2011

Registration with Government Authorities/Franchise

Certain operations of consolidated subsidiaries are registered with the BOI as preferred pioneer and 

Leases

URC

The URC Group leases land where certain of its facilities are located.  The operating lease agreements 

respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leases of the URC Group follow:

2011
Within one year
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The URC Group has entered into a one-year renewable, noncancellable lease with various related parties 

Future minimum lease receivables under noncancellable operating leases of the URC Group that are due 
within one year amounted to 
respectively.

RLC

subsidiaries follow:

2011
Within one year

years

The RLC Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio.  
These noncancellable leases have remaining lease terms of between one and ten years.  All leases 
include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis based on prevailing 
market conditions.  The lease contracts also provide for the percentage rent, which is a certain 
percentage of actual monthly sales or minimum monthly gross sales, whichever is higher.  Total rent 

Future minimum lease receivables under noncancellable operating leases of the RLC Group follow:

2011
Within one year

years
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JGSPC 

2011
Within one year

–

JGSPC has entered into commercial property leases.  JGSPC has determined that it retains all the 

The future minimum rentals under noncancelable operating lease of JGSPC amounted to 
and 

CAI

CAI entered into operating lease agreements with certain leasing companies which cover the following 
aircraft:

Date of Lease Lessor Lease Term
CIT Aerospace International 

CITAI

RBS Aerospace Limited
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Future minimum lease payments under the above-indicated operating aircraft leases of CAI follow:

2011

US Dollar
Philippine Peso

Equivalent US Dollar
Philippine Peso

Equivalent US Dollar
Philippine Peso

Equivalent
Within one year
After one year but not more 

respective lease terms are for a period of seven years.  The delivery dates of the aircrafts which were 

Under the aforementioned aircraft lease agreements, CAI paid PALSI and Pegasus monthly maintenance 

-

equipment.  These leases have remaining lease terms ranging from one to ten years.  Certain leases 
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Future minimum lease payments under these noncancellable operating leases of CAI follow:

2011
Within one year

years

Digitel

Digitel leases certain premises for some of its telecommunications facilities and equipment and for most 

agreements generally require certain amounts of deposit and advance rentals, which are shown as part of 

Future minimum lease payments under these noncancellable operating leases of Digitel follow:

Within one year
After one year but not more than 

RBC

upon mutual agreement of both parties.  Various lease contracts include escalation clauses, most of 

Future minimum lease payments under these noncancellable operating leases of RBC follow:

2011
Within one year

years
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Other Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

RLC
Capital Commitments
RLC has contractual commitments and obligations for the construction and development of investment 

completion and delivery of real estate units that have been presold.

CAI

US Dollar
Philippine Peso

Equivalent
Within one year
After one year but not more than 
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Off-Balance Sheet Items

subsidiary bank does not anticipate material unreserved losses as a result of these transactions.

contractual amounts:

2011
Trust and investment group accounts

–
Committed credit lines –
Contingent - foreign currency swap
Domestic standby letters of redit –
Late deposit/payment received
Inward bills for collection –
Outward bills for collection
Items held for safekeeping
Other contingent accounts

Contingencies
The Group has various contingent liabilities arising in the ordinary conduct of business from legal 
proceedings which are either pending decision by the courts, under arbitration or being contested, the 
outcomes of which are not presently determinable.  In the opinion of management and its legal counsels, 
the eventual liability under these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material or adverse effect on 

 is not disclosed on the ground that it can be 

Discontinued Operations

income has been re-presented to show the discontinued operation separately from continuing operations.  

which the Parent Company and other sellers may not transfer or encumber such PLDT shares without 

million PLDT shares under separate option agreements that the Parent Company had entered into with 

outstanding common shares.
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were accounted for as a single disposal of a subsidiary.

Results of Discontinued Operations

2011
Revenues
Sale of goods and services
Cost of Sales
Gross Income
Other Operating Expenses
General and administrative 

Impairment losses and others

Operating Income
Financing costs and other charges
Market valuation losses on 

Finance income
Others
Income Before Tax from 

Discontinued Operations

Income Tax
Income after Tax from 

Discontinued Operations 
Gain from Sale of a Subsidiary, 

net of tax
Net Income from Discontinued 

Operations

Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company from discontinued operations

2011
Income from discontinued operations 

attributable to equity holders of the  
Parent Company

Weighted average number of 
common shares

Basic/dilutive earnings per share
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Cash Flows of Discontinued Operations

2011

activities

activities

Effect of Disposal on the Financial Position of the Group

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Derivative assets
Receivables - net
Inventories
Other current assets

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Other noncurrent assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Derivative liabilities
Short-term debt
Current portion of long-term debt
Other current liabilities

Total Current Liabilities
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Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt - net of current portion

Other noncurrent liabilities

NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

NET ASSETS DISPOSED OF

CONSIDERATION RECEIVED

Cash consideration

GAIN FROM SALE OF A SUBSIDIARY

NET CASH INFLOW FROM DISPOSAL
Cash consideration received
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

Disposal Group Held for Sale

Shantou SEZ Toyo Guangdong Acesfood
Proceeds from sale 
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Shantou SEZ Toyo Guangdong Acesfood
Receivables
Inventories
Property, plant and equipment
Other current assets
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities –

Business Combination

share in RBS.

the acquirer from RSBC to JGSCSC and RHI.

Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and receivables
Other assets

Total assets
Deposit liabilities
Bills payable
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Value of license acquired
Total assets acquired for cash

Cash and cash equivalents acquired
Cash consideration
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Mergers

Plan Merger of the Parent Company and Certain Subsidiaries

Parent Company approved the Plan of Merger.

of the Absorbed Corporations considering that all of them are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Parent 

shares will be considered as treasury shares.

subsidiaries.

Plan Merger of RSBC and RBC

a. Merger of RSBC and RBC under the following salient terms:
The shares of the capital stock of RSBC outstanding on the effective date of merger shall be 

All shareholders of RSBC shall become the stockholders of RBC in which all outstanding 

The share of capital stock of RBC issued and outstanding at the effective date of merger shall, 
together with the Series B Preferred shares to be issued pursuant to above, continue to be the 

The Series B Preferred Stock to be issued by RBC pursuant to the merger shall have a par value 

RBC, having the commercial banking license, will be the surviving entity.
b. Plan of Merger of RSBC and RBC
c. Articles of Merger of RSBC and RBC
d.
e. Amendments to the By-Laws of RBC as of the effective date of merger 

banking license, as the surviving entity.
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Subsequent Events

a.

Supplemental Disclosures to Cash Flow Statements

The principal noncash activities of the Group are as follows:

a.

a.
b.
c.

escrow account which was in accordance with the agreement with PLDT.

b.

c.

d.

e.

corresponding recognition of ARO liability with the same amount.

f.

g.

h.
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i.

investments category to AFS investments.

Approval for the Release of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY

common stock
Listed on the 
Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.
3rd Floor, Philippine Stock Exchange
Ayala Triangle, Ayala Avenue
Makati City, Philippines

stock transfer  and dividend paying agent
Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc.
15/F BDO South Tower
Makati Avenue corner H.V. dela Costa Street 
Makati City, Philippines

corporate head office
JG Summit Holdings, Inc.
43/F Robinsons Equitable Tower
ADB Avenue corner P. Poveda Street
Ortigas Center, Pasig City
Metro Manila, Philippines
Tel No. (632) 633-7631 to 40 /  (632) 240-8801 
Fax No. (632) 633-9207 / (632) 240-9106

independent public accountants
Sycip, Gorres, Velayo & Co.
Certified Public Accountants
SGV Building, 6760 Ayala Avenue
Makati City, Philippines

legal counsel
Romulo, Mabanta, Buenaventura, Sayoc 
& delos Angeles Law Office
21/F Philamlife Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas
Makati City, Philippines

company website
www.jgsummit.com.ph


